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Frontier Smart ' Frontier Silicon was founded

Technologies GI’OUp is in 2001 and is headquartered
| in London, with engineering,

a pioneer In d'Q'ta' radio sales and operations teams in
and smart audio Cambridge, Timisoara (Romania),
technologies, providing Hong Kong and Shenzhen
chips, modules and

software for audiodevices

visit www.frontiersmart.com for more information @
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HIGHLIGHTS

2017 saw strong growth
in Group revenues and EBITDA

%]
I
@
o
Ry
3

Revenues EBITDA R&D expenditure
£m £m £m
: o
19 100 .
w
:
s ‘ 321 6.4) (0.8) 74 &
265 66 6.5
2014 2015 2016 2017 2014 2015 2016 2017 . 2014 2015 2016 2017
Financial highlights Operational highlights
+ Revenues up 28% to £41,0 million « Strong performance in Radio driven
(FY2016: £32.1 million) by switch-off of FM radio in Norway,
+ EBITDA up 171%to £1.9 million coupled with steady growth in other
(FY2016: £0.7 million) European markets
« Radio revenues up 15% to £36.3 million = In Smart Awdio, over 20 models
(FY2016: £31.7 million) released incorporating the Group's
+ First material revenues for Smart Audio :"'#f"" with Google Chromecast
IR N

of £4.7 million (2016: £0.5 million)

« R&D expenditure fiat at £8.5 million
{(FY2016: £6.6 million}

= As of 31 Decermber 2017, the Group's

gross cash balance was £5.9 million;
the net cash balance was £3.0 million

= Working demonstrations of Frontier's
Smart Audio solutions, incorporating
Gooegle's Volce Assistant, Amazon's
Alexa Voice Services and Apple
AirPlay 2, presented at the CES
tradeshow in January 2018

= Ten design wins secured for devices
incorporating Frontier's Smart Audio
solution with Google’s Voice Assistant
- products to be released in 2018
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AT A GLANCE

‘Weareaglobaltechnologycompanyfocused
on digital radio and smart audio solutions

Our markets

Frontier Silicon is the world’s leading
provider of chips, modules and software
for digital and internet radios. Custormers
include Sony, Philips, Panasonic, Pure,
Roberts, Grundig and several major
retailer own-brands.

DAB radic Is now established as the core future platform for
radio in several European markets and Australia. in 2017,
Norway became the first country in the world to switch off its FM
broadcasts — providing a significant boost to Frontier's sales of
DAB solutions. Switzerland has announced it will be the next
country to switch off FM starting in 2020/21. National DAB+
services are available in the UK, Germany, italy, the Netherlands
and Denmark; and in 2018, a significant rol-out of new services
is expected in France, Belgium and Austria.

Frontier has a strong market leadership position with
approximately 80% share of the consumer DAB sector,

The business line delivers strong positive cash flows (FY2017
EBITDA of £9.5 million before Group costs). Frontier is leveraging
the experience and expertise gained in digital radlo 10 establish
itself in the rapidly developing world of Smart Audio.

Key statistics

Frontier share of
consumer digital
racio sector

80%

Smart Audio

Frontier is positioned as the leading
solution provider for third party brands
building Smart Audio devices based on
the streaming and voice platforms of
Google, Amazon and Apple.

In 2017, Frontier secured its first material revenues (£4.7 millicn)
for ils Smart Audio business line. The Group secured over

20 design wins from third party brands for smart speakers
incorporating Google's Chromecast streaming platforn.

“Customers include Harman JBL, Marshall and Urbanears.

At the Consumer Electronics Show ({CES") in January 2018,
Frontier showcased working demonstrations of its first solutions
incorporating Google's Voice Assistant, Amazon's Alexa Voice
Services and Apple's AirPlay 2. The Group is one of a very small
number of system integrators working with all three ecosystem
players. The Company has recently announced ten design wins
for voice-enabled products, which are due to come to market
during 2018.

L4
Google [ amazon
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Our engineering and commercial teams have
abroadinternational presence-our customers
include blue-chip digital audio brands

Nens

<

7
P
1)
=
=]
=1

Our locations

employees globally »

Fomana Hong Kong Skenzhen
Core development Software Engineering, sales Manulacturing
and operations development and support and cperations

Our customers

Global - Regional Importers/retailers
e y ;
SONY Tivoli Audio MedaSiMord
.~ ONKYO ROBLRTS - Dual
_SE GRUNDIG EAC Lsmn"
& YAMAHA Panasonic T ' John Lewis
: sBUSH
harman kardon ‘:','Bl, TechniSat halfords Dixons| -E
Proneer PHILIPS 2cve  @LG Waimartsx  Argos
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Introduction

The last financial year has been a very
positive period for Frontier. The Group
has recorded a strong financial
performance with revenues up 28% to
£41.0 million and EBITDA more than
doubling ta £1.8 million. At the year end,
Frontier recorded a gross cash balance
of £5.9 milion and had a ret cash
balance of £3.0 million. These resulis
were driven by an impressive
performance in Radio, and our first
significant design wins in Smart Audio.

The strength in Radio has been especially
pleasing and refiects a retum on

. investment made by Frontier over
several years. The Radio business has
maintained its market-leading position,
whilst also benefiting from growth in DAB
Digital Radio volumes, driven by Digital
Switchover ('DSO') in Norway (completed
in December 2017) and steady growth in
other European markets. The cash flows
from Radio underpin the Group's
investment in Smart Audio.

The Smart Audio market is still at an early
stage of development and Frontier's
business line remains in investrmeant
phase. 2017 saw the Group's first matenial
revenues from the sector, but given the
nascent status of the market for third
party Smart Audio devices, it is difficult to
predict the speed at which this business
fine will scale up. Our development focus
is on bringing solutions to market which
support the leading voice-enabled
ecosystems of Google Voice Assistant

{'GVA", Alexa Voice Services (AVS') and
Apple AirPlay 2. These programmes are
progressing well.

In 2018, we expect the growth in Group
revenues and EBITDA to be modest.
The Group's goal is to deliver a solid
Smart Audio technology platform, which
underpins stronger growth in 2018 and
2020, and also provides an entry point
into additional {non-audio) segmenis of
the Smart Home markel. The Board and
management will menitor the business
closely to ensure stability of the Group's
financial position. '

Today, | am announcing that | am standing
down frem the Fronfier Board at the
upcoming Annual General Meeting and
will not be seeking re-election as a
Director. | have served as aNon-Executive
Directar for nine years and as Chairman
since July 2015. In this latter period, the
Group has successfully exited its
healthcare business, removing a
significant cash drain on the Group’s
finances ard allowing management to
focus on Frontier's digital audio business,
an area where the Group has extensive
expertise and strong compelitive
advantage. As a result. Frontier has
become EBITDA positive and cash
generative. The 2017 financial results are
testament to the underlying strength of
the Group and without doubt, an exciting
future lies ahead for Frontier. | wish the
Board every success in building a leading
consumer technology business which
delivers sustainable shareholder value.

A verypositive
period for the
Group

| am also announcing today that Chris
Batterham will not be seeking re-election
as a Director at the Annual General
Meeting. Chris joined the Board nearly six
years ago. His experience and good sense
have been invaluable in helping the Group
through some testing times. | would like to
thank him for his contribution.

Finally, as ever, | would like to thank the
Group’s staff for all their efforts over the
last 12 months. The resulls speak for
themselves and | believe that Frontier will
continue to make significant progress in
times ahead.

Dr Martin Knight
MNon-Executive Chairman

7 March 2018



(Page 7 of 64)

Frontier Smant Technologies Group Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2017

INVESTMENT CASE

Number one technology
provider for Digital Radio
- delivering sustainable,
positive EBITDA

4

In Smart Audio, Frontier
positioned as leading
multi-ecosystem solutions
provider - working with
Google, Amazon and Apple

Minuet
Frontier Smarnt Audio solution

Leveraging core strengths
from Radio {technology,
customers, ODM
relationships) to address
Smart Audio opportunity

5

20 SmartAudiodesignwins
in2017.Firstvoice-enabled
design wins secured -
products cometomarket
in 2018

w

Investmentin SmartAudio
underpinned by positive

cash flows from Radio

6

Technologies developedfor
Smart Audiotransferrable to
other non-audio Smart
Home categories

Verona 2
Best seling digital radio module

iodojoi5eiency |
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'SSTATEMENT

Anthony Sethill
Chief Executive Officer

Revenue

£41.0m

(2016: £32.1m)

Overview

Frontier made good progress in 2017,
The Group delivered a robust financial
performance with revenues up 28% to
£41.0 million (FY2016: £32.1 million) and
EBITDA growing strongly to £1.9 million
(FY2016: £0.7 million).

Our established Radio business
performed well in 2017, especially in the
first half, boosted by the switch-off of FM
radio in Norway and continued growth in
other European markeis. Our Smart
Audio business delivered its first material
revenues and, within this sector, the
Group is well-positioned 1o address the
emerging apportunities for modules and
software for voice-enabled speakers.

in 2017, we kept our R&D expenditure
broadly flat at circa £6.5 million, with
investment in Smart Audio increasing
marginally, whilst spend on Radio was
reduced by a similar amount. We have
focused our engineering efforts on the
development of our Smart Audio
software to include the incorporation of
voice recognition capabilities. This work
is progressing well. All R&D costs have
been expensed during the year as they
are either of a sustaining nature for Radio
or they relate to Smart Audio which is a
nascent market.

Revenues up 28%
to £41.0 million;
EBITDA more
than doubles to
£1.9 million

We retain a clear focus on bottom

line profitabitity and through tight
management of costs, coupted with
strong revenue growth, we have
improved our cash position during 2017,
ending the year with £5.8 million cash
and a net cash position of £3.0 million.

Qur strategy for 2018 and beyond is

to maintain our |leadership position in
Digital Radio and to use the cash flows
from this business to underpin our
investment in Smart Audio, and in due
course, in Smart Home.

The Smart Audio market represents an
exciting potential opportunity and growth
driver for the Group. The sector has been
transformed by the advent of voice-enabled
devices from ecosystem industry leaders,
Amazon and Google. Both companies are
keen to develop a market for Smart Audio
devices from third party brands based
respectively on Amazon's Alexa Voice
Senvices and Google's Voice Assistant.
Whilst the market for devices from third
party brands is still at an early stage of
development, our clear objective ks to
establish Frontier as the leading
multi-ecosystern solution provider in

this sector, ulilising our experience and
relationships in Radio to develop this
posilion. We have already announced a
number of design wins for volce-enabled
devices and we expect our first
voice-enabled Smart Audio salutions to
come to market in the course of 2018.
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CASE STUDY

Zound Industries selects Frontier Siliconfor its
new Marshall branded multi-room speakers

ot Mg e O ur ” ——

Zound Industries chose Frontiers
smart audio platform, to add
multi-room functionality, Chromecast
built-in, Spaotify Connect and Apple
AirPlay to three of its Marshall
multi-room speakers — the Marshall
Acton, Marshall Stanmore and Marshall
Woburn models.

The Marshall Stanmore Multi-Room
and Marshall Woburn Multi-Reom offer
consumers six ways (o connect:
Chromecast built-in, Spotify Connect,
AirPlay, Bluetooth, RCA input and a
3.5mm input, whilst the Marshall

Acton Mutti-Room offers five ways:
Chromecast built-in, Spotify Connect,
AirPlay, Bluetooth and a 3.5mm input.
As a result, consumers can stream audio
via Wi-Fi from aver 150 online music
services, such as Spotify, Pandora

and iHeartRadio.

Zound industries’ Marshall branded
Wireless Multi-Room system allows users
1o play different songs in each room or
play the same song throughout the entire
home. Each of the speakers has seven
one-touch pre-sets, which allow users to
select and store favourite playlists,
albums, or radio stations.

It was important for us
to ensure that the
Marshall branded
Wireless Multi-Room
system provides an
unparalleled listening
experience with muitiple
ways to connect and
listen to music. Frontier
has been a dedicated
partner, with its highly
skilled software team
and its mobile app
development skills, in
delivering this goal.

kb

Pernilla Ekman
Zound Industries Intemational

All these features can be controlled
through the "Marshall” branded app
(foriOS and Android), which Frontier
developed for Zound. The app also
allows users to control the Marshall
branded Wireless Mulli-Room
speakers’ EQ settings and alter the
intensity of their LED control dials.

The Marshall branded Wireless
Multi-Room system was launched
in September 2017.

[
=
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT continued

Qperational review

Radio

Frontier's Radio business performed

well in 2017 with revenues growing 14.6%
to £36.3 million (FY2016; £31.7 million)
and EBITDA improving to £9.5 million
(FY2018: £8.7 million). The Group
continues to maintain its strong market
leadership in both consumer DAB and
Advanced (Intemet) Radio. Frontier
recently announced the sale of its

45 millionth digital radio solution,
reflecting the Group's strength in the
sector and is on course to have sold more
than 50 million units by the end of 2018.

The key driver of growth in 2017 was the
switch-off of FM in Norway, where digital
radio sales volumes increased by over
100% compared to 2016. This particularly
benefited Frontler's sales in the first half
of the year. Growth was particularty
strong in the automolive aftermarket
segment — for devices requifed to convert
cars which only have FM radio. The
switchover took place over a 12-month
period, starting in January 2017 and
completing in December 2017. Sales
growth was particulady buoyant in the
first three quarters of the year, before
slowing in {he fourth quarter. Sales in
2018 are expected to fall back slightly,
but the extent of this decline is difficult to
predict. The next country anticipated to
switch off its FM networks is Switzerland,
a process expected to start in 2020/21.

Elsewhere in continental Europe, sales
volumes continue to grow steadily with
visible increases in Germany, the
Netherlands, Denmark, France, Italy and
Belgium. In the last 12 months, there have
been significant developments in a
number of cur core markets. In italy, a law
was passed in December 2017 which will
require all new radio receivers from 2020
to be capable of receiving digital signals.
In France, the media regulator has
confimed plans for an accelerated roll-out
of DAB+ services across the country.

Once DAB+ coverage exceeds 20% ofthe
French population, which is expected in
2018, 2 law requiring new receivers to offer
DAB+ is due to be tiggered. In Germany,
the Grand Coalition agreement includes
commitments to supporting DAB+ both
at a national and European Union level.
In the UK, 49.9% of radio istening is

now via digital devices. When this figure
exceeds 50%, the Government has
promised a review of the UK's long-term
digital radio strategy.

Margins for our Radio business remain
healthy at 42% (FY2016: 44%). Average
sales prices (‘ASPs’) were slightly lower
{argely due to a shift in product mix
towards lower priced solutions; at the
same time, average cost prices ('ACPs)
also declined due to the use of lower
cost components.

In 2017, our engineering expenditure for
Radio was £1.8 million, 24% lower than in
FY2016 (£2.3 million). The Radio businass
is relatively mature and any engineering
expenditure is of a sustaining nature and
therefore expensed. Our goal is to
maintain our market leadership position
and product margins, whilst ensuring that
the business line continues to deliver
strong posiive cash flows.

The core assets fram our Radio business
of world class audio engineering skills.,
long-term commercial relationships with
consumer audio brands, strong customer
support for Aslan-based factories, and
strong positive cash flows, all underpin
our entry into the voice-enabled Smart
Audio market.

Smarn Audio

2017 saw the first material revenues of
£4.7 million {FY2016: £0.5 million) for the
Group's Smar Audio business. This
business line is at an early slage of
development and retumed an EBITDA
loss of £7.1 million (FY2016: £7.4 million).

Frontier's first Smart Audio revenues were
for its Minuet solution incorporating
Google's Chromecas! technology (a
non-voice platferm which facilitates the
streaming of online music services via
Wi-Fi enabled speakers). More than 20
modeils incorporating Frontier's Smart
Audio technology have been launched
from brands including Harman JBL,
Marshall, Urbanears, Brookstone,
Jensen, Sclis, Alle¢ Lansing, Biaupunkt,
Terris, and Toshiba.

The Smart Audio markel is developing
rapidly and the introduction of
voice-enabled devices from Amazon

and Google has transformed the
landscape as both companies look o
establish their respective voice assistants
in consumer homes. in parallel, Apple
has recently launched its AirPlay 2
streaming technology.

Google and Amazon are both
agyressively promoting their own first
party products (i.e. Google Home, Google
Mini, the Arnazon Echo and Echo Dot)
whilst simultaneously pursuing strategies
to encourage the development of Smart
Audio devices from third party brands
incorparating the Google Voice Assistant
(GVAY) or Amazon's Alexa Voice Service
(AVS'). Frontier's focus for 2018 and
beyond is on supporting these third
party brands.
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Frontier is ane of a very small number of
technology players working with Google,
Amazon and Apple inthis sphere and our
objective is to position ourselves as the
leading multi-ecosystem solution provider
in Smarl Audio. The Group's ability to
astablish strong relationships with each
of these players is testament to Fronlier's
expertise in the digital audio technology

Legendary US audio brand Klipsch®chooses
Frontier solution with Google Assistant

b6

Frontier's technology, processes and customer support
havebeencritical elementsinenablingustodeliver, tovery
tight timelines, voice-enabled speakers which offer the high
performance and emotional experience for which the
Klipsch brand is intemationally renowned.

B

vifa)e.

i

Loda

market. n
Rob Standley :
At CES 2018, the global consumer . . .
elecironics tradeshow in Las Vegas this Vice President of Global Marketing & Product Development, Klipsch Group w
January, Frontier showcased its latest
Y

Smarl Audio solutions incorporating GVA,
AVS, and AirPlay 2. All three solutions are
on course lo enter mass production

during 2018. Frontier has already
announced design wins for ten models
Incorporating GVA from brands including
Altec Lansing. Braven, Klipsch, Jensen,
Memorex, and Solis and these are
expected to come to market during the
course of 2018.

Frontier's marging for Smarnt Audio
{FY2017: 31%) are narrower than for
Radio, in part because the Company
does not use its own silicon in this market
segment, and also due to the greater
competitive pressures in this market,

Smart Audio R&D expenditure Is heavily
focused on software development to
ensure that the solutions incorporating
GVA, AVS and AirPlay 2 meet the
standards required by the respective
ecosystem players. in 2017, R&D
expenditure on Smart Audic was

£4.7 million, (FY2016: £4.2 million).

US audio brand Klipsch®chose
Frontier's Smart Audio platform to
power its two new premium Google
voice-enabled speakers.

Klipsch produces high performance
speakers aimed at audiophiles and
aficionados around the world. The
company has partnered with Frontier to
bring voice assistant capabifity, via the
Google Assistant. 1o two of its leading
meodels — Klipsch Heritage Wireless
speakers “The Cne® and “The Three".

The One is a 30W stereo speaker - now
with the Google Assistant, Chromecast
buiit-in, Bluetooth®wireless technology
and an 8-hour rechargeable battery. It is
a 2.1 semi-portable stereo speaker, and
will be priced at $349. The Three
{positicned as the One's “bigger, badder
brother”) is a table-top 2.1 stereo
speaker with Google Assistant,

The Three

Chromecast built-in, Bluetooth 4.2
and 60 watts of home-filling power.
The Three will be priced at $499.

Both models embody Klipsch's core
principles of delivering the power,
detail, and emotion of the live music
experience into consumers® homes
using the lalest audio technologies.

Frontier's SmanSDK (voice-enabled
streaming software solution) and
Minuet hardware provide a compiete
multi-ecasystem platform for brands
and manufacturers to develop
voice-enabled audio devicas which
suppor the latest technologies,
including Google Assistant and
Chromecast built-in, quickly and
cost-effectively.

The speakers are planned 1o taunch
in 2018.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT continued
e

The table below reconciles the Group's EBITDA to its loss for the year.

Restated

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Loss for the year {1,897} (17,331)
Add back:
Taxation 313 {1 ,§07)
Net finance charges/(income) 2712 352
Depreciation N 202 . 358
Amortisation 2,342 2377
Share-based payment - A 617 §§3
Lass for the yea; from discontinued operations - 15,892
EBITDA 1,939 671

Financial review

Revenue and margin

Group revenue for the year

increased by 28% to £41.0 million
{FY2016: £32.1 million), The growth in
revenue was largely driven by DSO in
Norway, which contributed to strang
growth in Radio sales in the first half of
the year, bolstered by the first material
revenues from Sman Audio of

£4.7 million. Total volumes shipped
across the business were 6.4 million
units (FY2016: 5.2 million).

Gross profit margin decreased slightty
over the year from 44.0% to 41.2%.
Overall gross margins are expected to
decline in the mid-term as Smaidt Audio,
which has lower margins than Digita!
Radio, grows as a proportion of

total revenues.

Research and development

As noted last year, the trend on R&D
expenditure as a proportion of revenues
has been downwards since the first half
of 2015, with R&D spend in 2017 of

£6.5 miilion representing 15.9% of Group
revenue {FY2016: £6.6 million and 20.5%
of Group revenue). The Board expecls
R&D to increase slightly in 2018 to enable
the completion of a number of software
blocks for GVA, AVS and AirPlay 2.

EBITDA

Following the Group's first positive
EBITDA contribution in 2016 of

£0.7 million, 2017 saw EBITDA increase
by 171% to £1.9 million. This contribution
flowed through to cash generation with
year end gross cash at £5.9 million
(E£3.0 million net). This compares te year
end 2016 with gross cash of £3.4 million
(net debt £0.7 million).

Discontinued operations

During 2016, the Group disposed of ils
Healthcare division and both the trading
losses and loss on disposal have been
included in the £15.9 million loss for the
year from discontinued operaticns.

Pre-tax loss
The Group reported a pre-tax loss
of £1.6 million (2016: loss £3.0 million).

Taxaticn

The Group has historically applied for and
received tax credils in respect of ils
research and development expenditure.
In 2017, the cash received in relation to
R&D tax credits amounted to £0.9 million
(2016: £1.8 mlllion). The reduction
year-on-year is due to the claims being
restricled as the Group nears profitability.

As at 31 December 2017 the Group has
unutilised tax losses of £36.9 miflion which
may be utilised against taxable future
profits. These losses are shill to be agreed
with the LUK tax authorities. In the Board's
opinion there is uncertainty over the timing
and quantum of their use in the foreseeable
future and therefore a deferred tax asset
has not been recognised.

Cash flow
At the year end, the Group recorded
£5.9 million of gross cash and cash

equivalents on the Dalance sneet (net
cash was £3.0 million).

Current trading and cutlock i
Prospecis for 2018 are favourabie, though
revenue and EBITDA growth are likely to
be modest. Radio volumes are likely to
plateau following the completion of the
digital switchover in Norway in

December 2017. In Smart Audio, we are
on course to deliver solutions incorporating
Google, Amazon and Appie technologies
during 2018, but the market for third party
voice-enabled speakers is still at an early
stage of development and we therefore
expect 10 see more substantial growth

in iater years.

As noted in the Chairman's Statement,
Dr Martin Knight and Chris Batterham
have, after careful consideration,
decided not to seek re-election lo the
Board at the AGM in April 2018. | would
like to thank both Martin and Chris for ,
their ong-standing service to Frontier
and wish them well for the future.
Additionally, | am pleased to announce
that Sir Hossein Yassaie has been
appointed to the Board and the Group
looks forward to working with such an
experienced professional in the digital
audio space.

Anthony Sethill

Chief Executive Officer

7 March 2018
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BUSINESS MODEL

L

The Group’s aim is to be the leading provider

of technology solutions for digital audio devices

Frontier is the established market leader
in solutions for digital radios. The Group
introduced its fourth generation digital
radio chip, Kino 4, in 2015 - allowing the
Company to maintain a share of the
consumer DAB market of approximalely
80%. This business line is significantly
cash generative; R&D expenditure is
focused on incrementa! developments
designed to sustain the Group's sector
leadership and is positive cash flows.

The Company is leveraging its strengths
in Radio {relationships with customers and
suppliers, in-house technotogy skills and
supply chain capabilities) to establish a
similar position in the rapidly developing

Smarnt Audio market. The Group's focus

Market leadership

Retain market tochnology

and leadership

Roadmap devetopments

« Automotive aftermarket

- Amazon Music

« Amazon connected audio API

is on enabling third party brands to develop
Smart Audio devices incorporating the
propriefary streaming and voice
recognition technology platforms of the
major ecosystem players (Google, Amazon
and Apple). Since the end of 2016, more
than 20 models of speaker have been
faunched based on Frontier's Smart Audio
platform incorporating Google's
Chromecast streaming technology.

At the beginning of 2018, the Company
showcased its first voice-enabled solulions
at the CES tradeshow — where it also
announced ten voice-enabled daesign wins.
Frontier is one of a very few system
integrators whose platform will support the
Google Voice Assistart, Amazon's Alexa

SR

AUDI@:

Market development
Frontier goat to be leading system
integrator for third party brands

Frontier positioned as
multi-ecosystem solution provider

. Turnliey module solutions
= Licensing SmartSOK

\foice Services and Apple's AirPlay 2.

This business line is currenily in investment
phase. Significant revenue growth is
expected over the next three years.

The third leg of Frontier's strategy is Smart
Home. The technologies developed for
Smart Audio. in the areas of connectivity,
security and voice recognition, are wholly
transferable to other, non-audio, Smart
Home calegories. When coupled with the
Group's relationships with the major
ecosystem players and its strong
relationships with many China-based
ODMs, Frontier is well placed to address
the opportunities in this market. The Group
is in the early stages of devising its market
entry strategy for this sector.

Market entry

Engage with ecosystem
{partners/customers)

Identify where Frontier technology
is applicable

Extend capabilities of core
platform SmartSDK

[ |

.I
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KPls

Thekey performance indicatorsthe Directors utiliseto
monitor the performance ofthe Group are as follows:

Unit orders and sales

Tne Group monitors, on a weekly basis,

all products ordered and shipped (sold)
across both business lines. Monthly
targets are set at the budget approval
stage and these targets are reported in
each manth’s management accounts.

Net working capital and cash
‘The Board considers the cash balance
of the Group to be of pre-eminent
importance. The Group has moved to
a cash positive position on an ongoing
basis, but cash still needs to be
carefuily managed to cope with the
seasonal and fluctuating working
capital balances. Even when
sustainable positive cash fiow is
achieved, this focus on cash will
continue.

Our core strengths

—

Waoarld-leading

audio technology

Average seliling prices, average
cost prices and gross margins
As with unit orders and sales, sales
prices, cost prices and margins are
monitored for each product type
offered by the Group. Gross margins
for Radio and Smart Audio are
reported in the management accounts.

Funding

During the year the Group
concentrated on managing the cash
resources of the business in line with
internal financial projections. The
current forecasts indicate that no
further funds are required in the
foreseeable future. Should additionat
funding be required in future perieds,

the Board is confident that a number of

potential sources may be available -
these would be assessed at that time,

Blue-chip

audio brands

Total revenues, margins,
overheads and EBITDA

The management accounts incluge
full financials for each business line.
Comparisons are made to budget
and prior year.

Share price
The share price Is constantly
menitored by the Board.

EActony/@BM

16

years’ heritage in
DAB technology
and relationships

Over

100

audio brands
as customers

45m

units
shipped

£1.9m
EBITDA
in 2017
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES :

A number of risks and uncertainties could adversely affect
the achievement of the Group’s corporate aims

Business risks

A number of risks and uncerainties could
adversely affect the achievement of the 4  High
Group's corporate aims. The following are
the key risks the Board has identified
together with the processes and policies
the Group has in place to mitigate those
risks as far as commercially practical.

HEAT MAP

Impact

1. Impact of newtechnologies

2. Delays in development

L - 3. Lack of commercial success
* 4. Losing market share
f 5. Supply-side risk
[ ) 6. Margin erosion
_' 7. Failure to protect IP

8. Staff dependency
Probability High

1. The impact of new technologies on the Group's markets

The introduction of new and untested technologies into digital audic
markets exposes the Group lo the risk that costly developments will take
longer to be adopted than expected or not achieve acceptable financial
retums and therefore put a strain on financial resources.

2. Potential delays in development and testing

NITIGATION

Close relationships with customers, strategic partners and participation
in tachnology conferences help management keep informed of new
technoiogy innovations. The Group's Smart Audia software platform has
been designed to ensure a high degree of flexibility in the direction of
future developments.

RISK PAITIGATION

Designing and introducing new and revised products at the cutting edge  We continue to improve the management of the software development

of technology can result in opersting failures when first intreduced and
tested. Delays can adversely impact our ability to supply the products
ow customers might want in a timely manner.

team to mitigate these risks, In Smart Audio, our cornmercial,
engineering and test teams have developed close working relationships
with the major ecosysiem players to ensure we are fully aware, in a
timely manner, of potential changes in their saftware requirements.

3. Customer products may not be commercially successful

In Radio, individual dels may not be successful. A risk
exists that the category could be eroded by the rise of voice-gnabled
devices.

In Smart Awdio, the speed at which the market for products from thirg
party brands takes off is uncertain. It is also unclear which brands'
products will be most successful.

In Radio, Frantiers market shane (~80%) mitigates agsinst the poor
performance of indvidual models. The risk of the Radic sactor baing
eroded by Smart Audic Is mitigated by Frontier's involvement in the latter
category. Frontier is 8l50 working ciosely with industry stakeholders to
encourage the intemational development of digital radio.

In Smart Audio, Frontier is working closely with Google and Amazon
to help ensure that products from third party brands can compete
effectively with first party products in terms of features, pricing and
promotional support.

N
=
B
o
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

4, Losing market share to competitors

RISK

in Radio, as the DAB market grows, the risk from potential

compstitols increases.

in Smart Audio, the potential scale of the opportunity has attracted a
greater number of competitors, the maijority of whom are focused on
working with a single ecosystem player.

MIT SATION

Management identifies potential risk areas ang ensures that the Group's
commercial and engineering resources ara focused on preventing any
loss of business. When del

s place particular r with
competitors, the Group works hard to regain the business — for example
by highlighting the best-in-class suppost that we provide to factories.

In Smart Audio, Frontier has developed close relationships with all the
major ecosysiem players. This positioning a5 @ mult-ecosystem soiution
provider is an important difierentiator. Frontier is also better placed than
most of its competitors to serve multiple customers simultaneously.

5. Avaitability and pricing of components; failure of suppliers causing a disruption in supply

RISK

In recent months, the pricing and availability of cartain components has
come under prassure.
We are dependent on third parties o manufaciure our components and,
in some cases, assemble our products. Failure of any of cur major

. suppliers could lead to delays in designing and tesling new products or
in supplying products on time and at the agreed costs o our customers.

6. Erosion of margins

o
w
2

Pressure on prcing and costs is a constant issue in Digital Audio.
The pressure on margins in Smart Audio may be stranger than for Radio.

WMITIGATION

For p y scarce P 1ts we have ir d ad d orders
1o ensure conlinuity of supply. We clossly monitor the timing and scale
of our sales forecasts to minimise the risk of ovarstocking components,

Wa manege the risk af being dependent on certain sﬁppﬁers by using &
number of differmnt suppliers wh possibi

MITIGATION

A key focus of our supply chain and logistics operations is to continually
seek lower cost and cast reductions where possibl

7. Failureto protect adequately the Group'sintellectual property

and challenges for infringement by third parties
RISK

We face the risk that others may seek to copy and/or infringe certain
aspects of qur intellectusl property ('IP'). Defence of our daims may
Prove uns. ful and exp . We might face challenges to our usa
of P that others could claim belongs to them. The consequences of this
could be a compiete withdi i/redesign of the offending product or
coatly delays in proving our right to exploit the disputed intellectual
property. We are not aware of any situation of IP infringement.

MITICATION

We seek to protect our intellectual property (IP”) through a
well-structured and controlled process of patent applications,
maintenance and other toots.

8. Debendency on senior management and staff for commercial relationships and product development

RISK

If we fail o retain key management and employees, our ability to pl

NITTGATION

Wa tantly the competitive nature of our salary and rewards

our development programmes and commitmeants to ¢4 on time
and to budget could lead to delays in achieving Group strategic results.

package (including tha share option ) for key employ R
We regularly update staff on the Group's goals, strategy and progress
through pany meatings and individua! briefings. We provide training
and developmant for staff (especially those with higher potential) to help

with future succession planning.
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Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables,
recoverable taxation and cash and cash
equivalents. The amounts presented in
the balance sheel are net of any
allowance for doubtful receivables,
estimated by the Directors. The Group
has a concentration of credit risk due to
exposure from a kimited number of
customers. This is managed at the
highest level in the Group. Cash at bank
is all held with highly rated banks, the
suitability of which is periodically
reviewed.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial
instruments comprise of cash and cash
equivaients. The Group has various other
financial instruments such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to a variety
of financial risks which result from
its operating and investing activities.
The Directors are responsible for
co-ordinating the Group's risk
management and focus on actlively
securing the Group's short- to
medium-term cash flows.

The Group deoes not actively engage in
the trading of financial assets and has
no financial derivatives. The most
significant risks to which the Group is
exposed are described below:

Cash flow risks

The Group seeks to manage risks to
ensure sufficient liquidity is available to
meet foreseeable neads by investing cash
assets safely and profitably. Short-term
Rexibility is achieved by the use of money
markets to deposit excess cash which is
not required in the shortterm.

The Directors prepare rolling cash flow
forecasts to identify the need to raise

any additional funding where a shortfall

in facilities is forecast. During 2015, a

£5.0 mitlion loan facility was arranged

and drawn down. This [can Is repayable
over a three-year period with repayments
commencing in 2016; during 2017,

£1.2 million was repaid. Current forecasts
demonstrate that no further financing will
be required to fund existing operations.

Currency rigks ..

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk. Most of its products are
priced in US dollars and, whilst the
majority of its third party cost base is also
denominated in US dollars, a large
element of its labour cost is bome in
sterling and, with the setting up of the
research centre in Timisoara, Romania,
an element is bome in Romanian leu.
Management aims to keep a reasonable
balance of cash in both US doMars and
sterling to cover the cost base. The Group
does not hedge its foreign exchange risk.
At the time when the Directors consider
that exposure to foreign exchange trading
risks becomes significant they will seek
to adopt appropriate hedging strategies
and products.

On behalf of the Board

Jonathan Apps
Assistant Company Secretary

7 March 2018
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Boardis collectively responsiblefor
creating shareholdervalue

re

Dr Martin Knight

Non-Executive Chalrman

Skills and experience

Martin Knight is an experienced
technology investor. He was previously
Chairman of Imperial Innovations Group
plc (now part of the IP Group pic). For 18
years, until 2010, he was a Govemor of
Imperial College, of which he is a Fellow.
He started his career at Morgan Grenfetl
& Co Limited. of which he became a
Director in 1982.

External appointments

Chairman of LMS Capital pic (the quoted
investiment business), Cambridge
Mechatronics Limited, and Chrysalis
VCT pic (the quoled SME investor).

Anthony Sethill
Chief Executive Officer

Skills and experience

Anthany Sethill is founder and CEQ of
Frontier Siticon Limiled. Since 2061, he
has successfully grown the business and
established Frontier Silicon as a strategic
supplier of digital audio chips and
modules to global consumer electronic
brands. Prior to that, Anthony was
Managing Director of Consumer &
Mobile Phone Products at Amstrad
Limited. His earlier career inciuded
senior management positions at
Samsung (UK) LUimited and ONDigital. -

Jonathan Apps
Chilef Financial Officer

Skills and experience

Jonathan Apps has over 18 years'
experience as a Finance Director, having
previously been CFO of Europe’s largest
independent Wi-Fi operator The Cloud
Networks for over four years. Prior to that
Jonathan was CFO of interactive TV,
mobile and internet content producer
YocMedia, CFO at AlM-listed technalogy
venture capital fund E-capital Investments,
and European Finance Director at network
integrator EQUANT Infegration Services.
Jonathan qualified as a chartered
accountant with Coopers & Lybrand and
has a Bachelor of Commerce degree from
Birmingham Unlversity.

External appointments

External adviser to technology start-up
LimitEar Limited.
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Chris Batterham -
Non-Executive Director

Skills and experience

Chris Batterham has considerable
financial and operational experience and
expertise having had an extensive career
in a range of relevant companies. His
career includes being Finance Director

of Unipalm plc, the first intemet company
to IPO and then staying with the company
for five years following its takeover by
Uunel Limited and being CFO for
Searchspace.

External appointments

Currently a Non-Executive Director of
Biue Prism Group plc and NCC Group
plc. Previously Chairman of Eckoh plc
and was 38 Non-Executive Director of
lomart Group plc, SDL ple, Staffware plc
and Betfa'ir Limited.

Martin Harriman
Non-Executive Director

Skills and experience

Martin Harmiman joined the Frontier Board
in December 2016, bringing a wealth of
experience manhaging and advising
intemational technology businesses.

He has heid senior rales at Telefénica
S.A., the Spanish multinational
telecommunications provider, including
CEO of Teleténica Digital UK and
subsequently Global Managing Director
of Cansumer Intemet of Things & Digital
Home, where he was responsible for the
roll-out of digital technclogies into the
home across Telefdnica’s 24-country
footprint. His earlier career encompassed
management roles at Ericsson, Marconi
and BT. ‘
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
P R e

UK corporate governance

The Beard is commitied to high
standards of corporate govemance
and is accountable to the Company's
shareholders for good govemance.
The Company has not adopted the UK
Corporate Governance Code. However,
the Board believes it has complied with
those aspects of the UK Corporate
Governance Code it believes retevant
for the Company.

‘ The role of the Board

The Group supports the concept of an
effective Board leading and controlling
the Group. The Board is responsible for
approving Group policy and strategy.

It meets on a regular basis, at least nine
times a year, and has a schedule of
matters specifically reserved to it for
decision making. The Board also
delegates specific responsibilities to
senior management and certain Board
committees. Management supplies the
Board with appropriate and timety
information and the Directors are free
to seek any further information they
consider necessary. All Directors have
access to advice from the Company
Secretary and independent professional
advice at the Group's expense,

The Board consists of a Non-Executive
Chairman, who was independent on
appointment, two executive Directors,
who hold the key operational positions
in the Group, and two Non-Executive
Directors, who bring a breadth of
experience and knowledge.

Board effectiveness

All Board members were asked to
complete a questionnaire addressing

the Board, committees. Chaiman and
individual performance. The questionnaire
was completed anonymously to ensure
frank and open discussion. The evalualion
was undertaken by Apple Consulting. who
are independent from any connection to
the Board. The resuils were presented to
the Board and recommendations from the
report are being implemented.

Relations with shareholders

The Group values the views of its
shareholders and recognises their
interest in the Group's strategy and
performance. The Annual General
Meeting will be used to communicate
with private investors and they are
encouraged to participate. The Directors
wiil be available to answer questions.

Separate resolutions will be proposed
on each issue so that they can be given
proper consideration and there will be a
resolution to approve 1he Annual Reporn
and Accounts.,

Internal control

The Board is responsible for maintaining
a strang system of internal control to
safeguard sharehalders’ investment and
the Group's assets and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The system of intermal
financia! control is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

An Audit Committee has been established
and comprises two Non-Executive
Directors, Mr C Batterham (chair) and
Mr M Harriman. The Commiltee meets

at least half yearly and is responsible for
ensuring thal the financial performance
of the Group is property monitored and
reported on, as well as meeting the
auditor and reviewing any reports from
the auditor regarding accounts and
intemal control systems. The Audit
Committee alsc reviews and monitors the
Company’s whistie-blowing procedures
and policy. Terms of reference for the
Audit Committee have been reviewed
and approved by the Board.

The Board has considered the need for
an intemal audit function but has decided
that the size of the Group does not justify
it at present. However, it will keep the
decision under annual review,
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Going concem

Al 31 December 2017, the Group has net
assels of £16.4 milkon and net current
assetls of £1.4 million, including

£5.9 million of cash. In order to meet its
strategic ambiticns, the Board remains
committed to ongoing investment into
the development of its producls. As
such, the Group anticipates being cash
flow positive in 2018 but will nevertheless
maintain strict controts over cash to
ensure it is managed properly to cover
the saasonality and occasional large
costs inhearent in the business.

in order to assess the approprialeness
of the going concern basis, the Board
has prepared detailed profit and cash
flow forecasts through to 31 December
2019 which incorporate the Group and
its subsidiary undertakings as at

31 December 2017.

Directors’ attendance record

Forecasts have been prepared as follows:

+ management has used its best efforts
to predict revenues and gross margin
from the core business for the forecast
period based on exisling customer
relationships and expectations for
developing new relationships in
existing markets;

« revenue streams for new business lines

have been modelled on a best estimate

basis with growth rates reflecting the
risk associated with new lines of
business; and

the Group's cost base is designed to

support existing revenue streams and

the development of new integrated
solutions for digital audio together with
their expected delivarable dates. This
has been forecast based on existing
costs together with an estimate of

forecast costs based on management's

experience.

The attendance of Directors at relevant meetings of the Board was as foliows:

The Board is satisfied that whilst there are
risk factors associated with any set of
forecasts, due care has been exercised in
preparing them. Having due regard lo all
of the factors listed above, the Board is
satisfied that it is appropriate 10 prepare
the accounts on a going concem basis,

Directors' and officers’

liability insurance

During the period the Company maintained
insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liability.

Audit Remunaration
Director Board Committee Committee
Mr A Sethill gofg
Mr J Apps s 9of9 -
Dr M Knight i ' 9of9 10f1 20f2
Mr M Harriman _ I 901'9- Jof3 20f2
Mr C Batterham T 7of9 30f3 20f2
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REPORT ON REMUNERATION
C e e

Basis of preparation

The Board is committed 1o openness
and transparency in relation to the
remuneration of the Directors. The
report below sets out the key elements
of the Group's policies in this respect,
i order to provide appropriate
information 10 sharehelders.

Directors' remuneration
The Board recognises that Directors’

" remuneratlon is of legitimate concem to

shareholders. The Group operates within
a competitive environment where
performance depends on the individual
contributions of the Directors and
employees and it believes in rewarding
vision and innovation.

Policy on Executive
Directors’ remuneration

A separate Remuneration Committee
has been @stablished comprising

the three Non-Executive Directors,
Dr M Knight, Mr C Batterham and

Mr M Harriman (chair).

The Remuneration Committee meets at
least twice a year and is responsible for
recommending tc the Board the policy
and structure for the remuneration of the
Executive Directors and senior
management and approving
performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee also fulfils
the role aof an options committee for the
Employee Share Option Scheme and its
main duly in this context is to approve the
grant of options to relevant employees.
Temms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee have been reviewed and
approved by the Board.

The remuneration of the Directors for-the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Fees and emoluments

The policy of the Board Is 10 provide
executive remuneration packages
designed lo attract, motivate and

retain Directors of the calibre necessary
to maintain the Group's position and
to reward them for enhancing
shareholder value and return. It aims to
provide sufficient levels of remuneration
to do this, but to avoid paying more than
is necessary. The remuneration will also
refiect the Directors’ responsibilities
&nd contain incentives to deliver the
Group's-objectives.

Mr A Sethill

Mr .3 Apps
Professor C Toumazou -

Paid to Merrycroft Limiled in respect of services provided by Dr M Knight

Paid to Imagination Technologies Group Limited on behalf of Sir H Yassaie

Mr C Batterham

Paid to A Digital Edge Limited in respect of services provided by Mr M Harriman

Total
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Pensions and benefits in kind

Included in the £266,000 paid to
Mr A Sethill is £9,155 in benefits in kind.

Pension contributions
Pension contributions are paid on base
salary cnly,

Bonuses

Directors’ bonuses payable at
31 December 2017 are £260,979
(2016: Enil).

Noti¢e periods

Mr A Sethill has a service agreement with
a six months’ notice period on either side.
Mr J Apps has a service agreement with a
six months’ nolice period on either side.

The Non-Executive Directors have letters
of appoiniment which are lemminable on
three months' notice on either side.
Future appointments of Non-Executive
Directors will be for specified terms
subject to re-election.

Share option incentives

On 21 January 2010, Dr M Knight was
granted 75,000 options over ordinary
shares at £2.40 per share exercisable
after 21 January 2010 which expire cn
20 January 2020.

Shares -
At 7 March 2018;

On 26 June 2014, Mr A Sethill was granted
205,000 options over ordinary shares at
£0.10 each, which expire on 25 June 2024
under the Group JSOP Scheme.

On 1 April 2017 when these options were
due fo vest, the performance criteria had
not been met, therefore 142,500 options
lapsed, and 62,500 remain unvested.

On 28 January 2015, Mr A Sethill was
granted 180,000 options over ordinary
shares at £0.10 each, which expire on

27 January 2025 under the Group JSOP
Scheme. These options are subject to
performance criteria as set out below.

On 6 February 2017, Mr A Sethill was
granted 750.000 oplions over ordinary
shares at £0.785 each, which expire on

& February 2027. These options are
subject ta the performance conditions
listed below.

On 26 June 2014, Mr.J Apps was granted
150,000 options over ordinary shares at
£0.10 each, which expire on 25 June 2024.
On 1 April 2017 when these options were
due to vest, the performance criteria had
not been met, therefore 87,500 options
lapsed and 62,500 remain unvested.

On 28 January 2015, Mr J Apps was
granted 150,000 options over ordinary
shares at £0.10 each, which expire on

27 January 2025. These options are

s Mr A Sethill held 150,000 shares in the Group;
= Dr M Knight held 31,250 shares in the Group;
* Mr C Batterham held 25,000 shares in the Group; and

* Mr J Apps held 6,250 shares in the Group.
It is Company policy that Directors are not permitted to pledge shares held in the Company.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Martin Harriman
Non-Executive Director
Chair of the Remuneration

Committee 7 March 2018

subject to performance criteria as set out
below. On 6 February 2017, Mr J Apps
was granted 370,000 options over
ordinary shares at £0.785 each, which
expire on 6 February 2027. These options
are subject 1o the performance conditions
listed below.

Vesting of the 2014 options awards for
Directors is conditional on a@ combination
of the Group's share price in comparison
to the FTSE All Share index and the
Group's share price atlaining a value of
£6.00 for 90 days by 1 April 2019.

Vesting of the 2015 option awards for
Directors is conditional on the Group's
share price attaining a value of £6.00 for
90 days by 30 January 2020.

Vesting of the 2017 option awards

for Directors is conditional on the
Group's share price attaining a value of
£1.60 for 30 consecutive trading days
by 6 February 2027. This condition has
been met.

None of the other Direclors have any
interests in share options of the Group.

o
g
=
,E
o
[




(Fage 24 of 64)

Frontier Smart Technologies Group Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2017

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their Annuat Report
fogether with the audited consolidated
financial siatements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017. This
report has been prepared voluntarily in
otder to provide appropriate information
for shareholders. ‘

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Group is
commercial exploitation of wireless
technologies and systems in the Radio
and Smant Audio sectors.

Business review

A review of the business in the year and

of future developments is given in the
Chaimman's Statemenrit and Chief Executive
Officer's Statement on pages & {o 10.

The results of the Groug are shown within
the financial stalements. The Directors do
not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Directors

The present Directors of the Company
and their biographies are shown on pages
16 and 17. Details of share options held
by ihe Directors are set out in the Repart
on Remuneration on pages 20 and 21,

Substantial shareholdings’

The only interests in substantial holdings of share capital of the Group which have been
notified as at 26 February 2018 were as folows:

Ordinary shares of Percentage

10p each of caphal

Number %

M&GImvestments 7851272 1960
Herald Investment o L 4_,2!_32_1_._809_ o ’ 10.§!
AXA Investment e ”2.834.889 6.'.95!
Luc Van Schil N e R 2.4§B.018 o 8.01
Hargreave Hale 2,427,000 5.98

Employee involvement

The Group has continued its practice of
keeping employees ifformed of matiers
affecting them as employees and the
financial and economic factors affecting
the performance of the Group.

This Is achieved through consultations
with employees and regular staff
meetings. Employee share cption
schemes have operated since 2003 and
are open 1o all eligible employees. Details
of the various share options outstanding
are given in note 22 of thgse accounts,
Al 31 December 2017, 3,877,321 share
opfions were outstanding with a weighted
average exercise price of 79p.

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by

disabled persons are given full and

fair consideration for all vacancies in
accordance with their particular aptitudes
and abilities. in the event of employees
becoming disabled, every effort is made
to retrain them in order that their
employment with the Group may
continue. it is the policy of the Group
that training, career development and
promotion opportunities should be
available to all employees.

Modern Stavery Act

The Board has approved a Modem
Slavery Act Transparency Statement in
compliance with seclion 54 of the Modern
Slavery Act 2015, which is available to
view on the Cempany’s website:
hitp./iwww. frontiersmar.com/
citizenship#

Jonathan Apps
Assistant Company Secrelary

7 March 2018
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The Group was incorporaled as a
corporation in the Cayman Islands, which
does not prescribe the adoption of any
particular accounting framework.
Accordingly, the Beard has resolved

that the Group will follow Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union {IFRS")
when preparing its annual financial
statements.

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Strategic Report, Directors’ Reportand
the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

In preparing the financial statements,

the Directors are required {o:

+ select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

state whather applicable accounting
standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial
statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on
the goning concem basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Group will conlifue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Group’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Group. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and hence for faking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities. .

The Directors confwm that:

= so far as each Director is aware, there
Is no reievani audit information of
which the Group's auditor is unaware;
and

= the Directors have taken all the steps
that they ought to have taken as
Directors in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the auditoris
aware of that information.

The Direclors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the
corporale and financial information
included on the Group's website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom
govemning the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

To the best of my knowiedge:

« the Group financial statements,
prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the Eurcpean Union, give
a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and loss
of the Group and the undertakings
included in Ihe consolidation taken
as a whole; and

= the Annual Report, including the
Strategic Report, includes a fair review
of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the
Group and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the
principal risks and unceriainties that
they face.

Jonathan Apps

Assistant Company Secretary
+ 7 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Frontier Smart Technologies Group Limited

Our opinion on the Groupfinancial

statements is unmaodified

We have audited the Graup financial
staterments of Frontier Smart
Technologies Group Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2017 which
comprise Principal Accounting Policies,
the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Pesition. the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, the Consolidated Cash flow
Slatement and notes to the financial
statements. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law

and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS") as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union.

In our opinion the Group financial
slatements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group's affairs as at
31 December 2017 and of its loss
for the year then ended, and

= have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRS as adopted
by the European Union.

Key audit matters

Basis for apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance
with Intemational Standards on Auditing
(UK) {I1SAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the Group
financfal statements section of our repon.
Wie are independent of the Group in
accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant (o our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including
the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to
listed entities, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirerments. We
believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our ppinion.

Who we are reporting 10

This report is made solely to the
Company's members, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our
engagement. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we
are required to state to them in an
auditer's report and for no cther purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyane other than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Conclusions relating

to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of
the following matters in relation to which
the 1SAs (UK) require us to report to you
where:

= the Directars’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting In the preparation
of the Group financial statements is not
appropriate; or

the Directors have not disciosed in the
financial statements any identified
material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a

period of at least 12 months from the
date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Overview of aur audit approach

« Overall materiality. £225,000, which
represents 0.5% of the Group’s
forecasted revenues.

+ Key audit matters were identified as
revenue recognition and impairment of
non-current assets.

= The operations that were subject to
full-scope or targeted audit procedures
made up 100% of consolidated
revenues and 97% of total assets.

The graph below depicts the audit risks identified and their relative significance based on the extent of the financial statement
impacl and the extent of management judgernent.

High &
Revenue
Employes G gnition
remuneration 3 Oparating _ .
il @y | aston o erge
creditors receivablg & go
Potentie) | :
financial . . Inventory Managament
statement Share override and
impact . incantives - judgemental
} Taxation provisions
Going concem
0 Ratated party transactions
Low - "

Low

Extent of management judgement
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Key audit matters are these matiers that, {whether or not due to fraud) that we were addressed in the context of our -
in our professional judgement, were of identified. These matters included those audit of the group financial statements

most significance in our audit of the that had the greatest effect on: the overall as a whole, angd in forming our epinion M
group financial statemenis of the current audit strategy; ihe aliocation of resources thereon, and we do not provide a

period and include the most significant in the audit; and directing the efforts of separate apinion on these matiers.

assessed risks of material misstatement the engagement team. These malters

OW THE MATTER V DRESSED IN THE AUDIT

KEY AUDIT LIATTERS

Revenue recognition

[
n
>
>
4]
5
o
=
=
D
)

Under 1SA {UK) 240, there is a rebuttable presumed risk that  Our audit work included, but was not restricted Lo:

revenue may be misstated due to the improper recognition  _ auaiating revenue recognition policies 1o ensure compliance with IAS 18 ‘Revenue’;
of revenue due to fraud.

- testing a sample of individual revenue items during the year and around the year

The Group has reported revenues of £41.0 milion for the end, agreeing ftems selectad for testing through 1o supporting evidence including -
:"’ ’:";" :;d December 2017, arising substantally from salas invoice, signad goods delivered notes and cash receipts; and
e e . §oocs: L o . - assessing credit journal entries posted to revenue during the year where the
Revenue is the mast signfficant item in the consolidated corresponding debit entries were notin line with the audit isam's expectation of
statement of comprehensive Income and affects & number debtors, deferred income or salas Incentives. For entries notjn line with expectation,
of key performance indicators and hey strategic indicators supporting evidence wes obisined b &nsure appropristeness.

sat out in the Chief Exacutive Officer's Statement and
The Group's accounting policy on revenue recognition is siated in the principal

Strategic Report.
. . actounting policies and disclosures relating to revenue are included in note 1.
There is a risk of incorrect revenue recognition, arising from:
= recognition ¢f revenue in the wrong period; Key observations
. Our testing did not identify any material deviations in the Group's revenue recognition
~ ravenue is not recognised in accordance with IFRS as
" polices from (AS 18. In addition, our audit work did not identify any material errors in

adopted by the European Union; and
- manipidation of revenues around the year end through
management override.
We therefore identified ravenue recognition as a significant
risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of
matesiz) misstatement.

the occurrence of revenue recognised in the year.

Impairment of non-current assets

The Directors are required to make an annual assessment Qur audit work included, but was not restricied to:

16 detarmine whather tha Group's goodwill and intangible - obtaining and Iculating T g ts \t and sensitivity analyses
assats, which stand at £8.5 million and £6.2 millien,

respectively, are impaired.

- challanging management’s assumptions utiised in the impaiment modets,
. o . including cash flow forecasts, growth rates, discount rates and terminal values
The process for assessing whether impairment exists under through performing a sensitivity analysis;

Intemational Accounting Standard (1AS") 36 Impaimment of o
assats is compiex. The process of determining the value in - assassing for potential impairment indicators relating to intangible assets;

use, through forecasting cash Rows related to cash - companing current market capitalisation to camrying value of net assets and
generating units (CGUs’) and the determination of the calculated value in use for the Group;
sppropriata d'm.“"t rate and other assumptons lo be - testing the accuracy of management’s forecasting through a comparisan of budget
applied, can be highly judgemental and can significanty 1o actual data: and
impact the results of the impairment review, !

- gvaluating the detaled disdosures to ensure information provided in the financial
We thersfore identified the goodwil and intangible assets statsments is compliant with the requirements of LAS 36 and consistent with the
impairment review as a significant risk, which was one of resuits of the impaimment review.
the most significant assessed risks of material

The Group's accounting policy on “review of the camying value of goodwill, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and other investments® is shown on
page 34 and the related disclosures are included in notes 6, 8 and 10.

misstatement,

Key observations
We concluded that there were no indicators of impairment and the value in use
sufficienty exceeds the carrying value of goodwill and intangibles.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT continued

To the members of Frontier Smart Technologies Group Limited

Our application of materiality
We define materiality as the magnitude
of misstatement in the financial
statements that makes it probable that
the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable person would be changed
or influenced. We use materiality in
determining the nature, timing and extent
of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of that work.

We determined materiality for the audit of
the Group financial statements as a whole
to be £225,000, which is 0.5% of Group
revenue. This benchmark is considered
the most appropriate because it is a key
focus area for rmanagement and the users
of the accounts and represents
underlying growth of the business. _

We use a different level of materiality,
performance materlakity, to drive the extent
of our testing and this was set at 60%

of financial statement materiality for the
audit of the Group financial statements.

We determined the threshold at which
we will communicate misstatements
to the Audit Committee to be £11,000.
In addition, we will ccmmunicate
misstatements below that threshoki
that, in our view. warrant reporting on
qualitative grounds.

An overview of the

scope of our audit

Qur audit approach was based on a
thorough understanding of the Group's
business and is fisk based. An interim
visit was conducted before the year end
to complete advance substantive audit
procedures and to evaluate the Group's
intemal controls environment including its
IT systel:ns. The components of the Group
were evaluated by the Group Audit Team
based cn a measure of matefiality
considering each as a percentage of totat
Group assets, liabilities, revenues and
profit before taxes, to assess the
significance of the companent and to
determine the planned audit response.

For those components that were
evaluated as significant, either a
full-scope or targeted audit approach
was delermined based on their relative
materality to 1the Group and our
assessment of the audit risk. For
significarmt components requiring a
full-scope approach we evaluated
controls over the financial reporling
systemns identified as part of our risk
assessment, reviewed the accounts
production process and addressed
critical accounting matters. We then
undertook substantive testing on
significant transactions and material
account balances.

In order to address the audit risks
described above as identified during our
planning procedures, we performed a
full-scope audit of the financial
statements of the parenl company,
Frontier Smart Technologies Group
Limited, and of the UK entity, Frontier
Silicon Limited. We performed targeted
procedures over the other component
entities in the UK, Hong Kong and
Romanila. The operations that were
subject to full-scope or targeted audit
procedures made up 100% of
consolidated revenues and 97% of total
assets. Statutory audits of subsidiaries,
where required by local laws, were
performed to lower materiality where
applicable.




(Page 29

of

64)

Other infarmation

The Directors acknowledge they are
responsible for the other information.
The other infermation comprises the
information included in the Annual Reporl
set out on pages 1 to 23, other than the
financial statements and our auditos's
report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the
other information and. except o the
extent otherwise explicilly stated in our
report, we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Group
financial statements, our responsibility
Is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent
with the Group financial statements

or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be matenally
misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to
determing whether there is a material
misstatement of the Group financial
statements or a material misstatement
of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a malerial misstatement of
this other informalion, we are required to
report that fact,

Responsibilities of Directors

for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responsibililies Statement set out on
page 23, the Directors acknow'edge they
are responsible for the preparation of the
Group financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such intemal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of Group financial
statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due ta fraud or
error.

In preparing the Group financial
staternents, the Direclors acknowledge
they are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a gaing
concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concemn and
using the going concem basis of
accounting unless the Directors either
intend 1o liquidate the Group oF 10 cease
aperations, or have no realistic altemative
but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

for the audit of the Group
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reazonable
assurance about whether the Group
financial statements as a whale are free
from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducied in accordance with |SAs
(UK) will aiways detect 2 matenial .
misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered matenal if,
individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Group
financial statements.

A further description of our
responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Councif's wenbgsite at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our
auditor's repon.

ot/ Ny G2

Nicholas Watson
Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of

Grant Thormton UK LLP

Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

7 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

|_ Restated
2017 2016
- Note £'000 £000
Revanue 1 41,046 32,135
Cosl of sales (24,153) {18,000) [
Gross profit 16,893 14,135
Research and development {6.524) (6,588)
Sales and administralive expenses — other (8,430) {6,878}
EBITDA 1939 671]
Amortisation 9 (2,342) (2,377);
Depreciation 10 {292) 355)
Share-based payment 22 (817) (633)‘-
Total administrative expenses (18,205) - {16,829y’
Loss from continuing operations i {1,312) {2.594)'
Finance income 5 9 9
Finance charges (281) (361)
Lass before taxation 1 {1,504) (3.046)!,
Taxation 6 313 1,607t
Lass for the year from continuing operations {1,897) (1.439)
Lass for the year from discontinued operations 3 -— (15.892):
Loss for the year (4,997) 17,33y
Itemns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss -
Exchange differences on translating forgign operations ' (62) 17
Other comprehensive income {62) 17
Tatal comprehensive incoms for the year {1,959) (17.314)
Basic earnings per share- 7 !
— From conlinuing operations {4.44p) (3.36p)
— From discontinued operations e (37.10p)'
Diluted eamings per share
— From continuing operations (4.44p) {3.36p)
— From discontinued operations -— (37.10p)
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CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2017

Restated
2047 201§
Note £'000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwil ' 8,536 8,536
Other intangible assets . g 6,188 8,510
Property, plant and equipment 10 304 401
15,028 17,447
Current assets
Inventories " 3,536 2,588
Tax receivable 126 1,123
Trade and other receivables ~ 12 3,258 8.209
Cash and cash equivalents 13 5,854 3,376
Total current assets 12,714 15.296
Total assets 27,802 32,743
LIABILITIES
Current llabilities
Trade‘ and other payables 14 11,383 12,112
Total current fiabilities 11,363 12,112
Other liahilities > 1 year 15 -_— 2.872
Total liabilities 11,383 14,984
EQUITY
Share capital 16 4,217 4,275
Share premium 115,300 115,300
Share-based payment reserve 5,751 5,134
Fareign exchaﬂg-e reserve (80) 18
Retained eamings {108,829) (106,932)
Total equity 16,419 17,759
27,802 3R2.743

Total equity and liablilitles

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board on 7 March 2018.

Jonathan Apps
Chief Financlal Officer

/%/%Z\_

The accompanying principal accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017

——

Share-based Foreign
Share Share pay t Retained hang Tota)
capital premium reserve earnings reserve equity
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 1 January 2016 4,262 115,300 4,501 {89,601) {35) 34,427
Share-based payments — —_ _ 633 = . —_ 633
Issue of share capital 13 -— — - — 13
| Transactions with owners 13 — 633 —_ —_ 646 |
' Lass for the year — — _ {17,331) — {17,331} l
Other comprehensive losses
Exchange differences on .
translating foreign operations — — — —_ 17 17
| Total comprehensive loss —_— — —_— {17.331) 17 {17,314} ]
At 1 January 2017 4,275 115,300 5,134 (106,932) {18) 17,758
Pt Seviathd A, . e e e+ e ]
Share-based payments —-— -— 617 - - -— 617
r —_——— — - - e
Issue of share capital 2 -_ _— _ —_ 2
| Transactions with ownars 2 - 617 - - 619 |
'
Loss for the year -_— e —_ {1,897) —_ (1,887
Other comprehensive losses
Exchange differences on
translating foreign operations - - - — {62) {62)
] Total camprehensive loss — — _— {1,897) (62) (1,959) |
| At 31 December 2017 4,277 115,300 5,751 {108,829) (80} 16,419 !
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Restated =
207 2016

Note £'000 £000 ~
Cash flows from operating activities -
Loss before taxation {1.584) (3,046) B
Amortisation ‘ 2,342 23717
Depreciation ) B 292 ass S
Share-based payments h I 617 633 %,
Net interest payable 272 352 z
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (948) 78 %
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 4,951 {1.881) WE
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables {2,636) 900
Foreign exchange gain/{loss) 221 {559)
Tax refund 919 1,808 &
Net cash from continuing operations 4,446 1,014
Net cash used In discontinued operations — (5,200}
Net cash from/ (used In) oparating activities 4,445 (4,186)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment . (220) (a81)
Purchase of intangible assets {10) (1433
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries, net of cash sold ' _— 714
Net cash used In investing activities (230) 490
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of stgare capital ) 2 -
Loan repayments o o {1,200) (960)
Loan interest payabie (281} (361)
Interest receivable 9 9
Net cash used in financing activities {1,470} (1,252)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 2,746 (4,948)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period ) 3,376 7.748
Exchange differences on cash and cash eq‘uivalents (268) 576
Cash and cash aquivalents at the end of period 13 5,854 3376

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company was incorporated in the
Cayman islands which do not prescribe
the adoption of any particular accounting
framework. The Board has therefore
adopted and complied with Intermational
Financial Reperting Standards as
adopted by the European Union ('IFRS’).
The Company's shares are listed on the
AIM market of the London Stock
Exchange. The principal accounting
policies of the Group are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial stalements
consolidate those of the Company and

all of its subsidiary undertakings drawn
up to the balance sheet date. Subsidiaries
are enlities over which the Group has
control, which is defined as being
exposure, or rights, to variable retumns
from its involvement with the investee and
where the Group has the ability to affect
those retums through its power over the
investee. The Group obtains and
exercises control through 100%
ownership of subsidiary companies.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its subsidiaries are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminaled unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Amounts reported
in the financial statements of subsidiaries
have been adjusted where necessary to
ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries' are
accounted for using the acquisition
method. The acquisition method involves
the recognition at fair value of all
identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary,

at the acquisition date, regardless of
whether or not they were recorded in

the financial statements of the subsidiary
prios 1o acquisition. The acquisition cost

is calculated as the sum of the acquisition

date fair values of the assets transferred
by the acquirer, the equity interests
issued and excludes any transaclion
costs. The acquisition cost Includes the
fair value of any assets or liabilities arising
from contingent consideration
amrangement. On initial recognition,

the assets and fliabilities of the subsidiary
are included in the consolidated balance
sheet at their fair values, which are also
used as the bases for subsequent
measurement in accordance with the
Group accounting policies. Goodwill is
stated after separating out identifiable
intangible assets. Goodwill represents
the excess of acquisition cost over the
fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Where the Group's interest in a subsidiary
changes, but does not result in a change
in control, that change is treated as an
equity transaction. Any difference
between the carrying value of the
non-controlling interest and the fair
value of the consideration is

recognised directly in equity.

Where the consideration involves a
conltingent element, consideration is
given as to whether this meets the
definition of equity as a financia! liabitity.

Contingent consideration initialty
recognised as a financial liability in
accordance with the Group’s policy is
subsequently remeasured at fair value
through profit or loss untii settied.
Contingent consideration initially
recognised as equity Is not
subsequently remeasured.

Adoption of new

accounting policies

The Group has not adopted any new
standards or amendments that have
a significant impact on the Group's
results or financgial position.

Going concern

At 31 December 2017 the Group has net
assets of £16.4 million and net current
assets of £1.4 million, induding

£5.9 million of cash. In crder (o meet

it$ strategic ambitions the Board remains
committed to ongoing investiment into the
development of its products. As such the
Group anticipates being cash flow
positive in 2018 bul will neventheless
maintain strict controls over cash to
ensure it is managed properly to cover
the seasonality and occasional large
costs inherent in the business.

In order to assess the appropriateness

of the going concem basis the Board

has prepared detailed profit and cash flow
forecasts through to 31 December 2018
which incorporate the Group and

its subsidiary undertakings as at

31 December 2017.

Forecasts have been prepared as follows:

= management has used its best efforts
to predict revenues and gross margin
from the core business for the forecast
period based on exisling customer
relationships and expectations for
deveioping new refationships in
existing markets;

« revenue streams for new business lines
have been modelled on a best eslimate
basis with growth rates reflecting the
risk associated with new lines of
business; and

= the Group's cost base is designed to
support axisting revenue streams and
the development of new integrated
solutions for digital audia together
with their expected deliverable dates.
This has been forecast based on
existing costs together with an
estimate of forecast costs based
on management’s experience.

The Board is salisfied that whilst there
are risk factors associated with any set

of forecasts, due care has been exercised
in preparing them. Having due regard to
all of the factors listed above, the Board is
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the accounts on a going concem basis.
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Revenue

Revenue, excluding sales tax and relevant
sales incentives, comprises revenue
arising from the sale of products.

Revenue is only recognised when the
Group has performed all of its obligations
under the agreement and when the
revenues can be reliably measured.

Revenue, excluding sales tax, in respect
of the sate of goods is recognised at the
point that goods are despatched to and
accepted by customers, It is at this point
that the customer assumes ownership of
the product and therefore substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership are
deemed to have transferred.

The Group eamns revenue from design
services on either a fixed cost or time and
materials basis. These projects tend to be
shori-term in nature and the revenue is
booked to match the effort expended.

Many of the Group’s 8mart Audio
contracts contain multiple deliverables
as the contracts comain an element of
deferred revenue in respect of ongoing
maintenance obligations. The undelivered
maintenance element is deferred based
on management's assassment of the

‘fair vatue of the ongoing maintenance

using estimates of the cost plus margin
over the period for which maintenance
is contracted.

Goodwill

Goodwill, representing the excess of
the fair value of consideration over the
fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assels acquired, is
capitalised and reviewed annually for
impaiment. Goodwill is carried at cost
less accumulated impaimment losses.
Any excess In the net fair value of an
acquirer's identifiable net assets over
the cosl of acquisition is recognised
immediately after acquisition in profit
and loss.

Taxation

Current income tax assets and/or
liabilities comprise those obligations to,
or claims from, fiscal authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting period,
that are unpaid at the balance sheet date.
They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscat
periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable result for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax
expense in the total comprehensive loss.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the
liability method on temporary differences.
This involves the comparison of the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
In the consolidated financial statements
with their respeclive tax bases. However,
deferred tax is not provided on (he initia!
recognition of goodwill, nor on the Initial
recognition of an asset or liability unless
the related transaction is a business
combination or affects tax or accouniing
profit. Deferred tax on temporary

differences associated with shares in
subsidiaries is not provided if reversal
of these temporary differences can be
controlled by the Group and it Is
probable the reversal will-not occurin
the foreseeabie future. In additlon, tax
losses available to be carried forwand
as well as other income tax credits to
the Group are assessed for recognition
as deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax liabilities are atways provided
for in full. Deferred tax assets are
recognised 10 the extent that it is .
probable that they will be abie to be offset
against future taxable income. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are calculated,
without discounting, at tax rates that are
expected to apply to their respective
period of realisation, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheel date.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component
of tax expense in the Consolidated
Staternent of Comprehensive Income.
Changes in deferred tax assets or
liabilities that relate to a change in value
of assets or liabilities that is recognised in
other comprehensive income are charged
or credited in other comprehensive
income, current and deferred tax that
relates to items that are recognised in
equity is recognised directly in equity.

Research and development tax credits
not received at the year-end date are
included as current assets within the
Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, amounts receivable are included
within taxation in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Intangible assets

Intellectual property rights,
licences and development expenditure

The costs of creating and protecting
internally generated intellectual property,
patents and know-how are written off

to the Consclidated Statement of .
Comprehensive Income in the period in
which they are incurred if they do not
meet all of the following criteria:

= the technical feasibility of completing
the asset so that it will be available for
use or sale is probable;

« it is the intention of management to
complete the asset and use or sell it;

+ the Group has the ability to use or sell

the asset;

it is probable the asset will generate

future economic-benefit for the Group;

= adequate technical, financiat and other
resources to complete and use or sell
the asset are available; and

= the Group has the ability to measure
reliably the expenditure attributable to
the asset during its development.

The costs of acquiring rights to the use
of third party inteflectual property are
capitalised and, subject to impaiment
reviews, amortised cver the estimated
aconomic life of the intelieciual property
concerned. Amortisation is calculated so
as 1o write off the cost of an assel, less
its estimated residual value on a

. straight-ine basis over the useful

economic life of the asset as follows:

inteliectual
property rights
Licence and

development fees = 1to 4 years

-4 to 12 years

Prepaid royalties

and maintenance agreements

Prepakd royalties and maintenance
agresments are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income
as the underlying assets are utilised.

In respect of royalties this is when the
related goods are sold. For maintenance
agreements this is spread over the life
of the agreement.

Assetls acquired as part
of a business combination

An intangible asset acquired in a business
combination is deemed to have a costto
the Group of its fair value at the acquisition
date. The fair value of the intangible asset
reflects market expectations about the
probability that the future economic
benefits embodied in the asset will flow lo
the Group. The fair value is then amortised
over the economic life of the asset. Where
an intangible asset might be separable,
but only together with a related tangible

or intangible assel, the group of assets is
recognised as a single asset separately
from goodwili where the individual fair
values of the assets in the Group are not
reliably measurable. Where the individual
fair value of the complementary assets is
reliably measurable, the Group recognises
them as a single asset provided the
individual assets have similar useful lives.

Review of the canying value of
goodwill, other intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment
and other investments

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable

. cash flows (cash-generating units). As a

result, some assets are tested individually
for impaiment and some are tested at
cash-generating unit level. Group
management has determined that
cash-generating units, to which goodwill
can be allocated, are equivalent to its
operating segments. Goodwill is allocated
to those cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of
the related business combination and
represent the lowest leve! within the Group
at which management monitors goodwill.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at teast
annually. All other individua! assets or
cash-generating units are tested for
impaiment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the
canying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive income for
the amcunt by which the asset or
cash-generating unit's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverahle amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting markel conditions less
costs to sell, and value in use based on
an intemal discounted cash flow
evaluation. Impairment losses
recognised are credited initially to the
camying amount of goodwill. Any -
rematning impairment loss is charged
pro-rata to the other assets in the cash
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generating unit. With the exception of
goodwill, all assets are subsequently
reassessed for indications that an
impaiment loss previously recognised
may no longer exisl. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the assels’ recoverable
amount and only to the extent that the
assel's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets include cash
and trade and other receivables, which
are classified as loans and receivables.

All financial assets are recognised when
the Group becomes party o the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
All financial assets are initially recognised
at fair vaiue, plus transaction costs and
subsequently are amortised in line with the
Group's policy as disclosed on page 34.

Trade and other receivables are provided
against when objective evidence is
received thal the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due to it in accordance
with the original fenms of the receivable.
The amount of the write-down is
determinad as the difference between the
asset's carying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows.

Financial assets are derecognised when
the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial assets expire, or when
the financlal asset and substantially all
of the associated rfisks and rewards
have transfermed.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and bank demand
deposits, together with other short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible inlo known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes In value with original
maturities of three months or less from
the date of acquisition.

Equity

The share capital is determined using
the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

The share premium account represents
premiums received on the initlal issuing
of the share capital. Any transaction

costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from share premium,
net of any related income tax benefits.

The share-based payment reserve
represents the cumulative amount which
has been expensed in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive income

in connection with equity settled
share-based payments, 1ess any amounts
transferred to the profit and loss account
on the exercise of share options.

Relained eamings include all current
and prior period resulls as disclosed
in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprebensive income.

Where, as part of a business combination,
the Group enters into an agreernent
which includes a contingent element that
Is classified as equity, these amounts are
fair valued at the date of the acquisition
and heid in a separate equity reserve.
These amounts are not subsequently
remeasured but are transferred to share
capital and share premium on setllement
of the contingent consideration,

The foreign exchange reserve
represents the unrealised foreign
exchange gains and losses in the
Group's overseas subsidiaries.

Share-based payments

. All share-based payment arrangements,

in¢luding the JSOP scheme are
recognised in the financial statements.
The Group operates equity-setlied share-
based remuneration plans as

an integral part of its remuneration of

its employees.

Al services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based remuneration
are measured at their fair values. These
are indlirectly determined by reference
to the fair value of the share options
awarced. Their fair value Is appraised

at the grant date and exciudes the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions
{for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).

Share-based payments are ultimately
recognised as an expense in profit or
ioss in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income with a
corresponding credit to the share-based
payment reserve, net of deferred tax
where applicable. If vesting periods or
other vesting conditions apply, the
expense is allocated over the vesting
period, based on the best available
eslimate of the number of share options
that are expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of aptions
that are expected to become exercisable.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if
there is any indication that the number
of share oplions expected to vest differs
from previous estimates. No adjustment
is made to the expense or share issue
cost recognised after vesting if fewer
share options ulimately are exercised
than vested.

Upon exercise of share options, the
proceeds received nel of any directly
attributable transaction costs up 1o the
nominal value of the shares issued are
allocated to share capital with any excess
being recorded as share premium.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include
trade and other payables. Financiat
liabilities are obligations to pay cash or
other financiat assets and are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the
conltractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value, net of direct issue
costs, and are subsequently recorded at
amortised cost using the effective interest
metheod with interest related charges
recognised as an expense in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

A financial liability is derecognised when
it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled
ar expires,

Where the Greup enters into a contractual
arrangement which may be setiled either
through the issue of equity or a cash
payment, consideration is given as to
whether the arrangement should be
classified as equity or as a liability. Such
arrangements are treated as equity if and
only if the following criteria are met:

« the Group has the ability to avoid
seitling the obligaticn in cash;

« the Group can settle the obligation by
issuing a fixed number of shares.

Where both criteria are not met the
obligation is treated as a financial liability
and initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent changes in the fair value are
recognised in total oompfehensive .
income for that period. Where the effects
of discounling the payments are material,
this is taken into consideration in the
initial measurement. The subsequent
unwinding of this discount is treated as a
finance expense in total comprehensive
income over the lerm of the obligation.

Operating leases

All other leases are treated as operating
leases. Where the Group is a lessee,
payments on operaling lease agreements
are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
Associated costs, such as maintenance
and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

'Propeny. plant and equipment

(i} Measurement bases

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impaimnent losses. The cost of an
assel comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing
ihe asset to the working condition and
focation for its intended use. Subsequent
expenditure relaling to property, piant
and equipment is added to the canying
amount of the assets only when it is
probable that future econcmic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance are charged
to Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive income during the period
in which they are incumred.

When assels are sold, any gain or

loss resulting from their disposal, being
the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount

of the assets, is Included in the
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income account.

{i} Depreciation

Depreciation is caiculated so as to write
off the cost of property, ptant and
equipment, less its estimated residual
value, which is revised annually, over its
useful economic life as follows:

Leasehold - 33.3‘?6
improvements straight line
Plant and -33.3%
machinery straight line
Office - 33.3%
equipment straight line
Fixtures - 333%
and fittings straight line
Computer — 33.3-50%
equipment straight line
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost includes all
costs incurred in bringing each product to
its present location and condition, which
comprises the cost of direct materials
and third-party charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less any
applicable selling expenses.
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Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme. The assels of
the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group inindependently
administered funds. Entrants into this
scheme are enfitled lo have a percentage
of their basic salary paid into the scheme
by the Group. These conlributions are
charged to Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income as an
empioyee benefit expense in respect '
of the accounting period in which they
become payable.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in UK sterdling, which is also
the functional currency of the parent
company. Foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functiona) currency
of the respective Group entity, using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the fransactions (spol exchange rate).
Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settiement of such
transactions and from the remeasurement
of monetary items at year-end exchange
rates are recognised in profit or less in
the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Non-monetary items measured at
historical cost are transiated using the
" exchange rates at the date of the
transaction (not retranslated). In the

- Group's financial statements, all assets,

liabilities and transactions of Group
entitios with a functional currency other
than UK sterling are translated into UK
sterting upen consolidation. The
functional currency of the entities in the
Group has remained unchanged during
the reporting perod.

On consolidation, assets and liabilties
have been transtated into UK sterling

at the closing rate at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been
{ranslated irto the Group's presentation
currency at the average rate over the
reporting period which is deemed to be

a reasonable approximation of the actual
rate. Exchange differences are charged/
credited to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign exchange
reserve in equily. Goodwill and fair vaiue
adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity have been treated as
assetls and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated into UK sterling at the
closing rate.

Profit or loss from

discontinued operations

A discontinued operatlon is a component
of the Group that either has been
disposed of or is classified as held for
sale. Profit or loss from discontinued
operations comprises the post-tax profit
or loss of discontinued operations and
the post-tax gain or loss from resulting
from the measurement and disposal of
assets classified as held for sale.

Segmental reporting

In identifying its operating segments,
Group management follows the Group
reporting structure which represents the
development and exploitation of its
products and the overall controt of

- operations. The Group currently reports

three segments.

= Radle - this business line develops
and sells digital radio solutions;

= Smart Audio - this business line
develops and sells wireless
semiconductor chips and embedded
solutions for cloud-connecled
applications; and

» Group costs — Frontier Smart
Technologies Group Limited's
responsibilities are the overall
management of the Group companies
providing finance, Group strategy and
corporate govermance guidance.

Each segment is managed separately
requiring different management,
resources and marketing approaches.

The measurement palicies the Group
uses for segment reperting under IFRS 8
are the same as those used in its
management reporting.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Critical accounting

estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and
assumptions conceming the fulure.
The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related
actual resuits. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabiiities
within the next accounting year are
discussed below:

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group conducts annual impairment
reviews of assets when events or
changes in circumstances indicate

that their carrying amounts may nol be
recoverable, or in accordance with

the relevanl accounting standards.

An impairment loss is recognised when
the carrying amount of an asset is higher
than the greater of its net selling price or ~
the value in use. in determining the value
in use, management assesses the
present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of the asset and from

its disposal at the end of its useful life.
Estimates and judgements are applied
in determining these future cash flows
and the discount rate. These assumptions
relate to future events and circumstances.
The actual results may vary and may
cause adjustments to the Group’s assets
in future financial years. Assumptions
are made on revenue growth rates

and achievable margins which, given

the markets that the Group operatas in,
and the new products the Group are
introducing, may not eventuate or be
stower to attain. Details of the estimates
and assumptions made in respect of
the potential impairment of intellectual
property, goodwili on consolidation,

are detailed in notes 8 and 9 to the
financial statements.

The Directors considered the applicability
of the discount rate of 18% forthe

Radio division, and no impairment

was necessary.

Inventaries

Management estimates the net realisable
values of inventories, taking into account
the most reliable evidence available at
each reporting date. The future realisation
of these inventories may be affected by
future technology or other market-driven
changes that may reduce future

selling prices.

" waluations of share options granted

The fair vaiue of share options granted
is calculated using the Stochastic oplion
pricing model, which requires the input
of subjective assumptions, including
the volatility of share price and
satisfying conditions.

Details of the inputs are set out in note 22

- 10 the financial statements.

Intemally generaled software
and research costs

Management meonitors progress of
intemnal research and development
projecis by using a project
management system.

Research expenditure is recognised
as an expense when it is incurred.

Development expenditure ordinarily
expensed as incurred but may be
capitalised if, and only if, the Group can
demonstrate all of the following:

® the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure atiributable to the asset
under development;

{ii} the product or process is technically
angd commercially feasible; its future
econemic benefils are probable;

fii) the ability to use or sell the developed
asset; and

{iv) the availability of adequate
technical, financial and other
resources to compiete the asset
under development.

Development expenditure on the current
projects being worked on do not meet
the criteria to be capitalised as. in the
Board's view, it is too earty to determine
the economic benefits that may accrue.
In 2017 the major initiative being worked
on was the development of Goegle Voice
Assistant technology which whilst very
successful in Google's own branded
products has yet 10 be proven in a third
party environment. Development in 2018
Is likely to focus on Amazon Voice
Semrvices and, again, the economic return
from a third party enviranment has yel
to be proven. -

If the four criteria are met, future
capitalised development expenditure
would be measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any. Any future
capitalised developmert expenditure will
be amortised on a straight-line method
over the expecied life of the consumer
end products that use the Frontier SDK.
In the event that it is ne longer probable
that the expected future economic
benefits will be recovered, the
development expenditure would be
written down (o its recoverable amount.

Deferre'd fax assets

The assessment of the probability of
future taxable income in which deferred
tax assets can be utilised is based on the
Group’s latest approved budget forecast,
which is adjusted for significant
“non-taxabte income and expenses and
specific limits to the use of any unused
tax loss or credit. The tax rules in the
numerous jurisdictions in which the
Group operales are also carefully taken
into consideration. if a positive forecast
of taxable income indicates the probable
use of a deferred tax asset: especially
when it can be utilised without a time
limit, that deferred tax asset is usually
recagnised in full. The recognition of
deferred tax assets that are subject to
certain legal er economic limits or
uncertainties is assessed individually by
management based on the specific facts
and circumstances.
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Standards, amendments and
interpretations to exisling standards
that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted early by the Group

At the date of authorisation of these
financial statements, certain new
standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards
have been published but are not yet
effective and have not been adopted
early by the Group. Management
anticipates that all the pronouncements
will ba adopted in the Group's
accounting policies for the first period
beginning after the effective date of
the pronouncemant. Information on
new standards, amendments and
interpretations that are expected to
be relevant to the Group's financial
statements is provided below although
these are not expected to have a
material impact.

The following standards, amendments
and interpretations have been issued by
the international Accounting Standards
Board (1ASB) or by the Intermational
Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC’). The Group's
approach to these is as follows:

New siandards and interpretations
cumrently in issue but not effective,
based on EUJ mandatory effective dates,
for accounting periods commencing on
1 January 2017 are:

= IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts’ (issued
on 18 May 2017) 1 January 2021;

+ IFRS 16 'Leases’ (issued on

13 January 2016} 1 January 2019;

IFRIC (nterpretation 22 “Foreign

Currency Transactions and Advance

Considerations’ {(issued on

8 December 2016} 1 January 2018;

IFRS 15'Revenue from Contracts with

Customers’ (issued on 28 May 2014)

1 January 2018;

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ {issued

on 24 July 2014) 1 January 2018;

Amendments to |IAS 40 ‘Transfers

of Investment Property’ {issued on

8 December 2016) 1 January 2018;

*

L3

« Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Classification
and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions’ (issued on

20 June 2016) 1 January 2018;
Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Prepayment
Features with Negalive Compensation’
(issued on 12 October 2017)

1 January 2019;

Amendments to IAS 28 "Long-term
Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures' (issued on 12 Cctober 2017)
1 January 2018,

Amendments to IFRS 4 "Applying
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ with
iFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts’

(issued on 12 September 2016)

1 January 2018, and

Clarifications to IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’ (issued on
12 April 2016) 1 January 2018,

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from

'‘Contracts with Customers’

IFRS 15 presents new requirements for
the recognition of revenue, replacing
1AS 18 'Revenye’, IAS 11 Construction
Conlracts', and several revenue-felated
interpretations. The new standard
establishes a control-based revenue
recognition model and provides
additional guidance in many areas not
covered in delail under existing IFRS,
including how to account for
arrangements with mulliple performance
obligations, variable pricing, customer
refund rights, supplier repurchase

options, and other common complexities.

IFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. Management intends to adopt the
Standard retrospectivety, recognising the
cumnulative effect of initialty applying this
Standard as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained eamings on the initial
date of application. Under this method,
IFRS 15 will only be applied to contracts
that are incomplete as at 1 January 2018.
Management has started to assess

the impact.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ b
IFRS 16 will replace IAS 17 and three
reiated Interpretations. It completes the
IASB's long-running project to overhaul
the lease accounting. Leases will be
recorded on the Statement of Financial
Posilion in the form of a right-of-use asset
and a lease Rability.

IFRS 16 is efiective from periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Management is yet to fully assess the
impact of the Standard and therefore is
unable to provide information. However,
in order to detemine the impact, the
Group are in the process of:
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« performing a full review of all
agreements o assess whether any
additional contracts will now become a
lease under IFRS 16's new definition;

« deciding which transitional provision

1o adopt; either full retrospective

application or partial retrospective

application; and

assessing the additional disclosures

that will be required.

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’

The new Standard for financiat
instruments {IFRS 9) replaces IAS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’. t makes major changes
to the previous guidance on the
classification and measurernent of
financial assets and introduces an
‘expected credit loss' model for the
impairment of financial assets.

The Group holds al! of its financial assets
as cash or cash equivalents and does not
cumently enter into any financial
instruments that are more complicated
than cash deposits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017

e

1 Revenue, loss before taxation and segmental information
Revenure and loss before taxation
Revenue and loss before taxation are attributable 1o the principal activities of the Group.
The loss before taxation is stated after charging:
Restated
2017 20186
£000 £'060
Share-based payment expense 617 633
Staff costs . 1va07 8,505
Research and deveE;n:em ooét.s_urrmen oﬂ' T “__ e 6,524 ___ 6588
Amortisalion of intangible assets T ‘ 2342 2,377
Depreciathn-ol owned property, plant and equipment - 292 355
Gain Dn‘fnreign exchange . 352 (193)
Operalting leases: land and buildings . T N _ e _Eﬂi“_ N ___6_8(1
| Auditor’s remuneration: o j—_ - e . __}
Fees payabile to the Company s:;d;l;r—f;r the audit of the Cbmpany financial statements 25 - 29 |
|_Fees payable to the Company's auditor for other services o . o
— audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to the legislation o 7"_9_ e __?9__
| — other assurance services A_— ) e e ™8
. non—auditﬁs-er;i;es. T T s omromrm mmmm 3 - 1
Revenue by geographic location 007 2016
| £'000 £'000
United Stales and North America . . 919
Europe e T T 4134 2,456 |
Asin T - T T seess 26,760
[ Total revenue : 41,046 32135 |
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Assets and liabilities by geographic location -
Assets Liabilites
2017 2016 2017 2016 N
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cayman Istands 591 841 3,349 4,397 =
Europe 26,411 3,314 7,563 10,233 EE
Asia 800 588 4n 54
27,802 32743 11,383 14,9684

Segmental information
As described under segmental reporting in the Principal Accounting Policies, management currently identifies three business units
as operating segments. .

o
5
a
v

Smart
Radic Audio Group Total
For the year ended 3¢ December 2017 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 -
Ravenue 36,315 4,731 _— . 41,046
Cost of sales (20,376) (3.277) - (24,453)
Gross profit 15,439 1,454 - 16,893
Research and development (1,788) {4,738) -— ~ {8,524)
Sales and administrative expenses — other (4,124) {3,780) . (526) (8,430)
rEBITDA 9,527 {7,062) (526) - 1,939 |
Amortisation {2,334) 8) —_ {2,342)
Depreciation ‘ (231 (55) - (282
Share-based payment —_ —_ {617) : {617)
Total administrative expenses {8,483} (8,579) {1,143) {18,205}
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 6,956 (7.125) {1,143) (1,312)
Interest receivable/(payable) s — {281) {272)
Profit’(loss) before taxation 6,965 (7.125) (1,424) (1,584)
Taxation —_— — {313) (313)
Profiti{loss) for the year fram contlnuing operations 6,965 (7,125) {1,737 {1,897)

Included in revenues for the year ended 31 December 2017 are revenues of £12.9 miliion from the largest customer, £7.9 million from
its second largest customer and £2.2 million from its third largest customer. Together these represent 56.1% of the total Group
revenue for the year.
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1 Revenue, loss before taxation and segmental information continued
Segmental information continued

Smant

Redio Audio Group Total
For the year ended 31 December 2018 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue : 31,681 454 — 32,135
Cost of sales (17.682) (318) - (18.000)
Gross profit 13,999 136 s 14,135
Research and development (2,339 (4.249) -_ (8,588)
Sales and administrative expenses — other (2,548) (3,237) (691) {6.876)
EBITDA 8712 (7,350) (631 871]
Amortisation _ . (2,367) (10 = {2,317
Depreciation (262) (93} - {355)
Share-based payment — — (633) (633)
Total administralive expenses (7.916) (7.589) (1.324) (16,820)
Profiti{loss) from continuing operations . . __6._083 (7.453) (1.324) {(2,694)
Interest receivable/(payabie) — e _ (352) (352)
Profitloss) before taxation o 6,083 @453 (1.676) (3,048)
Taxation T i — — 1.607 1,607
lL.oss for the year from continuing operations 6,083 (7.453) {69) (1,439)

Included in revenues for the year ended 31 December 2016 are revenues of £10.7 million from the largest customer, £5.4 million from
its second largest customer and £1.8 million from its third larges! customer. Together these represent 55.8% of the lotal Group
revenue for the year.

2 Prior period restatement

Shorily afier the completion of the full year accounts for 2016, the Company became aware that an inter-company debflor of
£1.7 million in respect of the discontinued business should have been provided for in the period to 31 December 2016. In preparing
these statements for the period to 31 December 2017 and having regard to the materiality of the debtor, the Board has concluded
that the item should be treated as a prior year adjustment. The discontinued loss for the year to 31 December 2016 has therefore
increased to £15.9 million from the £14.2 million previously reported.
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3 Disposal groups classified as held for sale and discontinued operations i
The amounts presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income under discontinued operations relate 1o the disposal of i

Sensium Heatthcare Limited and its subsidiaries, together with the cessation of activities in Frontier Microsystems Limited.
Sensium Healthcare was disposed of on 22 July 2016 and the decision to cease activilies in Frontier Microsystems was taken on
the same day. Revenue and expenses relating to the discontinuation of this sub-group have been eliminafed from loss from the .'
Group's continuing operations and are shown as a single line item in the Staternent of Comprehensive tncome. !
The operating foss of Sensium Healthcare and Frontier Microsystems until the date of disposal and the loss from remeasurement
and disposal of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are summarised as follows:
Restated
2me!
Note £000
Revenue L . e .
Cost of sales e T T o (22if
Gross profit 31 :
Amortisalion ofintangible assets L IR L)
DSDI'ECiB_l;O_n“ . » T o o ____11_9)
Research and development e e (B7SY)
Sales and administrative expenses — other N (1.268)
Total administrative expenses (5.184).
Loss from discontinued operations before tax (5.153)i
Taxation . L
lossondisposal a (11,166)
Loss for the y;;Trb;r-l—t;l‘s:;n_ﬁ-ﬁt;d_ c;poratlons (15,892)?

The disposal of Sensium Healthcare allowed for the disposal of all of the assets and liabilities of the enlities as at 22 July 2016 with |
the exception of a receivable in respect of RED tax credits of £150k. The cessation of activilies in Frontier Microsystems eliminated L
any continuing costs and allowed for the settlement of all liabilities as at 22 July 2016 with non-curent assets, primarily test and IT |
equipment, transferred to other Frontier Smant Technologies Group companies. %

|

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in this disposed group are summarised as follows:
. }

Restated |
31 December 2016 |
Assels £'000 |
Non-current assets o o ‘!
Goodwill T ﬂ T ) T T "— __-_-_ _-__ ___:{
Other intangible assets ._:___.__ ‘ ) _ _______ e “__:l
Property, plantand equipment T : —i
=i
Current agsots . e
inventortes ) e =
Tax rec:i\;:b:l“e‘ T T ‘ ) o 229
Trade and other receivables [ st
Cash and cash equivalents o
Total current assets 229
Total assets 229
Liabitities
Current liabilities
Trade ang cther payables 408
Total current liabilitles 408

43
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 -

4 Disposal of Sensium Healthcare Limited
On 22 July 2016, the Group disposed of its 100% shareholding in its subsidiary Sensium Healthcare.

The consideration was settled £1 million on 22 July 2016, and £316k on 31 December 2016. At the date of disposal, the canying
amounts of Sensium Healthcare's net assels were as follows:

Restated

2018

£'000
Goodwill 10,582
Intangible assets 580
Property, plant and equipment 70
Total non-current assets 11,242
Inventories 435
Debtors o 532
Cash and cash equivalents ) 18
Total current assets 1,285
Trade and other payables (406)
Total current liabilities (406)
Total net assats 12,121
Total consideration received in cash o 1,000
Deferred consideration - 316
Other consideration T _.—.:.:..__—m T 56
Cost of disposal T {657}
Fair value of consideration received 955
Loss on disposal 11,166

Included within cther consideration is an amount relating 10 a ten-year royalty stream (3% of net revenues for five years, followed
by 2% of net revenues for the following five years).

5 Finance income

2017 2016
£°000 £'000
Bank interest receivable ) 9 9




(Page 47 of 64)

6 Taxation
The tax charged/(credited) for the year is as follows:
2017 2016
£'000 £000
Current tax o L .
UK research and development tax credil-cmentyear_”_ o N o 92_61 e ﬂ i
UK research and development tax credit —prioryear . 4 @
Foreign tax paid T T T T 238 128
313 {1.607) |
The tax assessed for the period differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK as follows:
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
| Loss before tax {1,584) (3,046)
Tax rate . L . . "___.__.-m.,_-...19% - 20% .
Expected tax credit e O o) (609) '
| — tax rellef for qualifying R&D expenditure ) (967) |
7 i_: overi(under)-provision in the prior year . ... S 931} :
Adjustment for non-deductible expen;;s: R T -;
-disallo_u_rahle expenses ~ . __‘_:____ o A_4i_6_____ﬁ__ﬁ4§_.:
- deferred tax balance not recognised in n;.EEo.rﬁo ﬁ.;ea -a;;é!“limin;-igr:nces - . o a0 98 :
- other adjustments/ foreigntaxpaid . 4588 33 '
- increase in losses carried forward to future 310 310 ]
Actual tax charge/(credit) 313 (1.607) ,

The Group has tax losses In the UX of approximately £36.9 million (2016 restated: £35.2 million) available for offset agalnst future

profits. However, there is uncertainty over the timing of future profits and therefore a deferred tax asset has not been recognised
in respect of these additional losses. '

expense due to there being insufficient certainty regarding its recovery.

A deferred tax liability arises on the intangible assets acquired as part of the acquisition of the Frontier Group of approximately
£1.9 million. At that time, the group headed by Frontier Silicon (Holdings) Limited had accumulated trading losses which would
have resulted in a deferred tax asset in excess of these amounts. Given thal these amounts would be expected to be settled at

- the same time as the liability, an asset in respect of these losses has been recogniged to an equal value of the potential liabiiity.
Given the Group has a right and the ability to seftle these amounis at the same time, the asset and liability have been offset in
these financial statements.

operaling profits. The Group has not recognised any further deferred tax asset in respect of these or any other of the Group's losses. :
The losses are still to be agreed with the UK tax autherities. It is anticipated that the losses will be available for offset against future

The deferred tax asset amounting to approximately £374,000 {2018: £1086,000) has not been provided on the share-based payment -
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7 Loss per share

The caiculation of the basic loss per share of 4.44 pence, (2016 restated: 40.46 pence) is based on the loss after tax of £1.9 million
(2016 restated: £17.3 million)} divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of 42,758,145
(2016: 42 832,269).

Due to the losses incurmed the impact of the share options and other deferred shares is anti-dilulive. As such the diluted earnings
per share equals the ordinary eamings per share.

8 Goodwill
Frontier Sensiym Frontier
Silicon Healthcare Microsystems Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2016 8,536 10,582 5,951 25,069
Addiens . _— = = = =
Disposals —_ {10,582) — {10,582)
Al 31 December 2016 8,536 — 5,951 14,487
Additions ] —_— - - —_
At 31 December 2017 8,636 - - 5,951 14,487
Impairment
Al 1 January 2016 -— -_— 5,951 5,951
Charge in the year T T —_ —_ - —
At 31 December 2016 — — 5,851 5,951
Charge in the year —_ _ — -
At 31 December 2017 —_ —_ 5,951 5,851
Net book amount at 31 December 2017 8,536 — — 8,536
Net book amount at 31 December 2016 8,536 —_ —_ 8,536

Goodwill relaling to Frontier Siticon results from the acquisition of the Frontier Silicon Group on 20 August 2012.

The Directors have tested the aggregate recoverable value of goodwill, specific intellectual property, and licence and deveiopment
fees for impainment in accordance with the Group's accaunting policy of testing annually for impairment. Recoverable value is
assessed by value in use, The Directers, in assessing the recoverability of the remaining ameount have considered the technical
feasibility of the technology and the opportunities for commercial exploitation, incfuding the position with the cumrent commercial
relationships.

To determiine the value in use, the Directors have produced detailed monthly profit and loss and cash flow forecasts for the five
years up to December 2022. A five-year forecast period is considered reascnable for the markets that the Company addresses,
particularly given the stage of development of the Group's products and the expected life of new technologies as explained
further below.

The Chief Executive Officer's Statement on pages 6 to 10 provides a summary of the Groan's expectations for each business line,
together with an overview of the relevant markets. Below we have summarised the key judgements in relation to the individual
impairment reviews, :

Frontier Silicon
The intangible assets of Frontier Silicon were independently valued in 2012 as part of the acquisition accounting. The difference
between the fair value of the net assets and the fair value of the consideration has been treated as goodwill.

Whilst Frontier has continued to make losses post-acquisition, primarily because of R&D spend, this is in line with the forecasts at
the time of the acquisition and therefare the Directors considerthe goodwlll atising on consolidation as still valid and no impairment
has occummed since acquisition. '
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The Direclors have reviewed the carrying value of these assets considering their forecasts of revenues and profitability for this
business sector. A discount rate of 12% was applied to future cash flows with a rate of 18% used as a stress test. Under both

scenarios, the carrying value of the intangible assets could be supporied.

In assessing the future cash flows of the division, the Directors have looked at a five-year forward view and then made a terminal value
assessment at the end of 2022 assuming no further sales and cost growth. This is based on the life cycle of the smarl sudio and digitat
radio products, where certain existing models are reaching end of life, and new models have 12 to 24 months’ development ahead of
them before a useful sales life of four to five years depending on future product enhancements. The Directors expect the market for
Digital Radio to keep expanding at its current rate and for the Company to maintain its market share. In Smart Audio, the Directors
expect the market lo expand significanily as Wi-Fi enabled speakers with much enhanced functionality really fake hold, The forecast
demonstrates that even a relatively small market share could lead to revenue growth rates significantly ahead of more mature markets.

The key judgements applied by the Directors in the forecasts are in relation to sales prices volumes and margins. The forecast model
is built on the Directors’ best estimates of the addressable market and the Company’s resultant share of that market. In determining
these estimates the Directors have considered information and trends from exisling markets and their expectations for emerging

markets in order to develop an assessment of both future sales volumes and prices. The Directors believe the underlying

assumptions to be reasonable but are aware that there are significant competitivé risks which would be magnified by delays to key
programmes and therefore growth rates may not be achieved, or margins coutd be compromised. Should the underlying estimates

not be achieved there is a risk these assets wil! be impaired.

9 Other intangible assets

Markating Customer Other Licence and
intellectual intellectual intallectuad development
property property property fees Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost ) R e e e _
Atdaay20te 4000 e | aroge 16§73 9272
Additions S —‘.___.___. == — 8 8
Disposals - — ©805)  (826) 7631 |
Al 31 December 2016 , 4000 1680 10204 15828 31722 |
o R A R R
Disposals - - - - -
At 31 Decomber 2017 4,000 1,690 10,204 15,838 31,732 |
Amortisation o ) . |
Al 1 January 2016 - 1333 470 11.005 14,855 27,753 |
Charge intheyear " 400 141 1268 568 2,377
Disposals i — — (6.805) ($13) (6.918)
At 31 December 2016 1,733 611 5,558 15,310 23212
Charge in the year ) R 40 14 1288 533 2,342 |
Disposats T —_ -_— o —_ - {10} {10)
At 31 Dscember 2017 2,133 752 6,826 15,833 25,504 |
Net book amount at 31 December 2017 1,887 238 3,378 5 6,188 E
Net back amount at 31 December 2016 2,267 1,079 4,646 518 8510 |

Intellectual property

Intellectual property relates to the valuation of beneficial licence agreements, trade names and customer relaticnships in Frontier

Silicon at the date of their original acquisition.
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9 Other intangible assetscontinued

Licence and development fees

The Group capitalises certain licence and third-party development fees where, in the view of management, they have intrinsic value
to ongoing software and hardware development programmes. Additions in the year relale to technology on new projects essential
to the future development of new generation solutions. The capitalised licence and development fees are amortised in accordance
with the Group accounting policy and are subject to an annual impaiment review.

Marketing

Impairment reviews

Customer relationships

Customer-related intangible assets may consist of customer lisis, order or production backlogs. customer contracts and
relationships, and non-contractual cusiomer relationships. Frontier has developed relationships with both consumer eleclronic
brands and manufacturers. The customer relationship valuation captures the economic benefits of having these trading refationships.

10Propeny, plant andequipment

Marketing-related intangible assets are defined as those assets that are primarily used in the marketing or promotion of products
and services. The Frontier solutions are well known and preferred by a majority of the consumer electronic brands who specifically
instruct their manufacturers to use Frontier modules and solutions in their audio systems.

The Directors have tested all intangible assets for impairment in conjunction with their lesting for goodwill, in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy.

Leasahold Plant and Office Fixtures Computer
hinery equipment and fittings equipmeni Total

£'000 £'000 £'900 £'000 £:000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 2016 175 1,835, 182 2,782 358 5,330
Additions - 4 3 129 7 143
Disposals (175) - {133) (118) (363} (789)
Foreign exchange on opening balance —_ —_ —_— 140 — 140
At 31 December 2016 — 1,839 52 2,933 — 4,824
Foreign exchange on opening balance - — —_ {74) — (74)
IGdltions -— 4 -— 216 - 220
Disposals -— _— -_— — -_ -—
At 31 December 2017 - 1,843 52 3,075 - 4,970
Dapreciation
At 1 Jﬂﬂg_zgli N I 173 1,708 147 N _l_’_Z_Z{l e 325 _ 4,623
ala_rgelnlheyeafv T -—?“— - 63 T 17 - 310 "ﬁ;F LHJ_E
Foreign exchange on opening balance —_ — — a2 — mg_g
Disposals (174) — (112) {72) (339) (697)
At 31 December 2016 —_ 1,771 52 2,600 — 4,423
Foreign exchange on opening balance —_— -— —_ (49) _— {49)
Charge in the year -_— 57 —_ 235 - 292
Disposals o - —_ — —_ — —
At 31 Decembar 2017 —_ 1,828 52 2,786 - 4,666
Not book amount
At 31 December 2017 - 15 —_ 288 — 304
At 31 December 2016 _— [:1:] _ 333 _ 401
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11 Inventories 7

| 2017 2016
; , " - £'000 £'000
| | Raw materials ] AT 1074
| Wompogress I
; ! Finished goods " 1,896 1,181
! 3,536 2,588
4 In 2017, a lotal of £21.9 million (2016: £16.3 million) of inventories was included in Cost of Sales in the Consolidated Statement
5 of Comprehensive Income. This inchudes an amount of £nil (2016; £0.04 million) resulting from a write-down of inventories.
i
% 12 Trade and other receivables - ;
. Restated
| 2017 2016
! £'000 £'000
: Trade receivables L 2151 6719 ||
3 Other debtors o i L. s e ‘
: ' Prepayments end accrued income Co T 492 669 |
’ 3,258 8,209 | ;
i All frade receivables are within credit terms of between 30 to 60 days and do not bear any effeclive interest. ' !
The fair value of these short-term financial assels is not individually determined as the carrying amount is a reasonable |
: approximation of fair value. ! |
i , Atthe balance sheet date, rade receivables are aged as follows. Whilst some of these amounts are past due, none of the amounts . i i
' are considered to be impaired in management's ppinion. ‘
2017 2016
j £'000 £000 j
* 0-30days 1,174 4,433 .
- -eodays T T T T T T T ers T T 2286 |
| e d_ay;m e .
2,157 8,719 %

© All trade receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairmant based on the age of the balances outslanding and the

‘ credit worthiness of the third parties from which these balances are due. There was no provision for bad debi al the start or end
‘ of the

‘ . year.
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13 Cash and cash equivalents

2017 2018
. £'900 £'000
GBPE 7 205
UsD$ : 4,557 2,916
Euro € 10 17
Hong Kong $ 460 200
Romania LEU ' 6 a8
5,854 3,376
14 Trade and other payables
Restated
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Frade payables 3,208 6,740
Other payables 839 564
Accruals 4,364 3,648
Loan (note 15) - 2,872 1,160
11,383 12,112
All of the above is due within one year. The: fair value of trade and other payables has not been disclosed as, due to their short
duration, management considers the carrying amounts recognised 1o be a reasonable approximation of their fair value.
15 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
m7 2016
£'oo0 £000
Loan -— 2,872
— 2,872

Loan

Frontier Smart Technologies Group Limited entered into a loan facility agreement in October 2015 for a maximum of £5,000,000.
The loan accrues interest monthly at 6.25% above three-month LIBOR with interest repayable in 12 quarterly instaiments
commencing 29 December 2015. Capital repayments are payable quarterly in ten instalments commencing March 2016, made
up of nine instalments of £300,000 and a final instalment of £2,300,000. The loan camies a fixed and floating charge over all the
property, assets and undertakings of the Group.
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| e e R
! r16 Share capital
‘ 2017
‘_ £'000
! Authorised L 7 - _
| 100.000,000 ordinary shares of 10 pence 10,000 10,000
1 | Allotted, issued and fully paid - o
l 42 766.171 (2016 42 748 464) ordmary shares of 10 pence 4,277 4,275

I The movement in the number of shares is as follows:
. Number of
. ordinary shargs

Al 1 January 2016

! e ¢ —— e &GS AR T ———— _ . -

Shares Issued (pne-share consolndallon)

Lsasea0

Share consohdanon 40:1

_1.704,779,379 !

et v e b e

lA(a%Decemberzms - o _‘{2._7.'58.{64__'|

|
j | Shares issued ) 17,707
“ At 31 December 2017 42,766,171

On 4 November 2016 there was a 40 10 1 share consolidation. The Company’s issued share capital now comprises 42,766,171
ordinary shares of 10 pence gach. All shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital and represent
equal votes at meelings of shareholders except for 2,206,238 (2016: 2,329,714) shares held jointly by the Employee Benefit Trust and
panticipants for the purposes of the Company's joint share cwnership plan in relation to which all voting rights have been waived.

Allotments during the year

|+ 2May 2017: 7.497 erdinary shares of 10 pence were issued in relation to the exercise of share options by employees

* 5 June 20M7: 5,675 ordinary shares of 10 pence were issued in relation to the exercise of share options by employees

= 3 July 2017: 300 ordinary shares of 10 pence were issued in relation to the exercise of share oplions by employees

= & September 2017: 3,625 ordinary shares of 10 pence were issued in relation to the exercise of share options by employees
' 12 October 2017: 157 ordinary shares of 10 pence were issued in relation to the exercise of share options by employees

= & November 2017: 453 ordinary shares of 10 pence were issued in relation to the exercise of share options by employees

Employee Long Term Incentive Scheme

Al 31 Decentber 2017, shares in the JSOP of 455,000 (2016: 685,000) ordinary shares were in issue to Direclors serving at that date
as disclosed in the Report on Remuneration. In addition, at that date the Company had in issue 349,853 (2016, 534,778) further
JSOP shares.

Share options

Al 31 December 2017, EMI options of 1,120,000 (2018 nil) ordinary shares were in issue to Directors serving at that date as
disclosed in the Report on Remuneration. in addition, at ihat date the Company had in issue 1,341,625 (2018: nil} further oplions.
Details of the fair value of all options in existence are provided in note 22.

Al 31 December 2017, optiohs of 75,000 {2016: 75,000) ordinary shares were in issue to Directors serving at that date as disclosed
in the Report on Remuneration. In addition, at that date the Company had in issue 535,843 (2016: 765,691) further opnons Details
of the fair value of all options in existence are provided in note 22.

JLeuld ¢

5 e
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17 Contingent liabilities

18 Capital commitments

19 Operating lease commitments
The Group leases office under operating leases, in addition the Group had other annuat commitments under non-cancellabie
operating agreements. The fulure minimum lease payments are as follows:

There were no contingent liabilities at 31 December 2017 or 31 December 2016.

There were no capital commitments at 31 December 2017 or 31 December 2016.

Within Qne to Over
one year five yaars fiva years Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Rent 560 413 _— g73
Total 560 413 —_ 973

2) Financial instruments

Financial assets by category

The Group uses financial instruments comprising cash and cash equivalents, other loans and various other short-term instruments
such as trade receivables and trade payables which arise from ils operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
fund the Group’s business strategy and the short-term working capital requirements of the business.

The IAS 39 categories of financial asset included in the balance sheet and the headings in which they are included are as follows:

2017 Restated 2016
Loans and Non-financial Balance sheet Loans and Non-financial Balance sheet
racoivablas assets total receivables assets total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 €000
Googwill _— 8,536 8,536 -— 8,536 8,536
Other intangibles assels —_ 5,188 6,188 - 8,510 8,510
Property, plant and equipment —_ 304 304 —_— 401 401
Inventories - 3,536 3,536 == 2,588 2,588
Trade receivables 2,157 a— 2,157 6,719 _ 8,719
Other receivables 609 — 809 821 — 821
Prepayments and accrued income  — 492 492 — 659 669
Tax receivable - 126 126 — 1,123 1,123
Cash and cash equivalents 5,854 — 5,854 3.376 - 3,376
Total 8,620 18,182 27,802 10,916 21;827 32,743
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Financial liabilities by category

The IAS 39 categories of financial Kability included in the balanoe sheet and the headings in which they are included are as follows:

2047 Restated 2016
Other Financial Other Financial
financial Habilities at financial liabilites at
liahilities at fair value liabilities at fair vaiue
amortised through amortised through
cost profit and loss Total cost profit and loss
£000 £'900 £000 £°00Q £'000
Trade payables . 3,208 _— 3,208 6,740 —
. Ofher payables 938 —_ 939 664 —
Accruals and deferred income 4,364 -— 4,364 3.548 —-_
Loan 2,872 -— 2,872 4,032 —_
Total 11,383 — 11,383 14,984 —_

Al financial assets and liabilittes are stated at amortised cost.

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both its operating and investing activilies.

The Board is

responsible for co-ordinating the Group's risk management and focuses on actively securing the Group's shor- to mediuvm-term
cash flows. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate lasting returns.

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets and has no financial derivatives. The most significant risks to

which the Group is exposed are described below:

- Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables, recoverable taxation and cash and cash equivalents. The

amounts presented in the batance sheet are net of any allowance for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Direclors. The Group

has a concentration of credit risk due to exposure from a limited number of customers. This is managed at the highest level in the
~ Group. Cash at bank i all held with highly rated banks, the suilability of which is periodically reviewed.

Liquidity risk

'I_’he Group holds all of its financial assets as ¢cash or cash equivalents which are entirely liquid. Trade receivables are recorded in
. the normal course of business and have maturities of less than three months. The Directors prepare rolling cash flow forecasts and
" would seek to raise additional funding whenever a shortfall in facilities is forecast. Details of the funding status of the Group are

incluged in the going concem paragraph in the principal accounting policies.

All the current financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet are expected to resutt in cash outflow within six months of the year

I end, with the exceplion of the term loan which is disclosed in note 14.

Currency risks

, The Group is exposed to translation foreign exchange risk in connection with its investment in Fronfier Silicon Limited whose
subsidiaries are Frontier Silicon (Hong Kong) Lid incorporated in Hong Kong and Frontier Silicon SRL incorporated in Romania.
The Group does not hedge any transactions. As a result, the Group is subject to foreign currency risk in respect of accounting

" for its investrent in the subsidiaries.

Foreign curvency denominated financial assets and liabilities which expose the Group to currency risk are disclosed below.
i The amounts shown are those reported to the Directors and translated into stering at the closing rate used in the consolidated

. financial statements.

Romanian
LEU HKS
£'000 £'000
 Assels 785 800
, Liabilities {114) (471
. Total exposure 671 329

i

T
=
=
D
v
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21 Related party transactions
The Group has taken advantage of the exemption under IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing transactions with other
members of the group headed by Frontier Smart Technologies Group Limited.

22 Employee remuneration
(i} Employee benefits expense
The average number of employees during the year was 176 (2016: 168).

Expense recognised for employee benefits, including Directors’ emoluments, is analysed below:

2017 2016

£000 £'000

Wages and salafies 8,761 7.382
Social security Costs ’ 912 725
Share-based payment . . — 51_!__ n 633
Pensions — defined contribution scheme 434 396
10,724 9,138

Included within the above, fully disclosed in the Report on Remuneration on pages 20 and 21, are amounts in respect of Directors,
including the Non-Executive Directors. Key Personnel include the CEO, CFO, VPs of Marketing, Sales, Engineering Operations and
HR. The compensation of key management personnel is as follows:

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Fees and emoluments 1,247 ' 1,425
Share-based payment 102 ' 343

1,348 1,768

(#) Equity compensation benefils

Frontier Smart Technologies Group has adopled the following schemes to promole relention, reward loyalty and align the interests
of employees ang Direclors with the long-term interest of the sharehelders, There are currently five types of schemes in place as
detailed below.

Frontier Smart Technologies Group EMI Scheme (2002) .
The Frontier Smart Technologies Group EMI Scheme was adopted in 2002 and approved by HMRC that year and was open to all
empioyees who were employed by the Company for more than 25 hours per week or 75% of their working hours.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 are exercisable at price of £2.08 and have a weighted average remaining
contractual life of one year (2016: one year). Na options were granted in the period ended 31 December 2017, or in the period
ended 31 December 2016. No further options will be granted under this scheme, All options lapse ten years after date of grant.

On 3 March 2013 options originally issued in 2005 under the EMI scheme time expired and were extended for a further 45 months
al the same exercise price, granting the shares a total life of 13 years © months. Although the EMI benefits to the employees expire
after ten years, the extended-life shares are included in the table overleaf.
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Current Grants Frontier Smart Technologies Group EMI Schemne: -
Date of grant Exsrcise price
3 March 2005 : 2080 M
1 Price agreed by HMRC. ) p
Options -
' Outstanding at Qutatanding at ' = exercisable =
1 January Exercised Forfeited no b 1D b =
2017 during year during year 2m7 - 2017 2
Amount 36,004 - —_ 36,008 36,004
Waeighted average price £2.08 _ _— £2.08 £2.08

Fermer Frontier Sman Technologies Group Unapproved Scheme (Directors) (2005)

The former Frontier Smart Technologies Group Unapproved Scheme was adopted by the Board in May 2005. All options, bar those
granted 30 September 2005, lapse ten years after the date of grant. The 42,096 options granted 30 September 2005, originally due
to lapse on 1 June 2015 were extended on 29 September 2015 for a further 12 months with the same exercise price. On 20 July 2016,
when Mr C Toumazou resigned these were extended to 31 July 2017 and have now lapsed.

»
g
E
2
(%l

The options outstanding at 31 Decamber 2017 were exercisable at a price of £2.40 and had a weighted average remaining
contractual life of two years (2016. three years). No options were granted in the period ended 31 December 2017, or in the period
ended 31 December 2016. No further options will be granted under this scheme.

Current Grants Former Frontier Smart Technologies Group Unapproved Scheme:

Date of grant Exercise price
© 21 January 2010 £2.40"
1 Average market price over three previous days before grant.
Options
Outstanding at Outstanding at axsrcisable
1 January Exercised Farfeited 1D b 3D b
2017 during year during year 2047 2017
Amount 482 646 ' -_— {82,646) 400,000 400,000
Weighted average price £2.36 — £2.14 £2.40 £2.40

Frontier Smart Technologies Group Unapproved Share Scheme 2012 Rules

Options were issued to employees and Directors under the Frontier Smart Technologies Group Unapproved Share Scheme which
was approved by the Board in November 2012. The exercise price for all aptions Is 10 pence. The options vest after three years and
the award will lapse ten years from grant.

The unapproved options outstanding at 31 December 2017 are exercisable at a price of 10 pence and have a weighted average
remaining contractual life of six years (2016: 7.5 years). During the curment year zero (2016: nil) options were granted to employees
' and Direclors. Good leaver rules apply to this scheme.

: The following performance conditions are relevant to the award 25 January 2013, for senior managers and Direclors the exercise is
conditional on the Frontier Smart Technologies Group share price performing above 125% compared to the FTSE All Share Index
over the three-year period commencing on the date of grant.

For senior managers and Directors 50% or 100% respectively were subject to a combination of the performance criteria set out below:

. = criteria 1 — this performance criteria have been set such that the value of an ordinary share is required to outperform the FTSE
" All Share index by 25% over the course of the vasting period in order for 50% of the award {o vest and by 50% in order for the
balance of the awards to vest. Awards vest pro-rata between those two thresholds; and
« criteria 2— 50% of the award will be subject to the share price attaining a level of £6 for 80 days by 1 April 2018. The remaining 50%
+  will be subjedct to the fallowing. The value of an ordinary share is required to outperform the FTSE All Share Index by 25% over
the course of the vesting pericd In order for 25% of the total awand to vest and by 50%, in order for the balance of the awards to vest.
Awards vest pro-rata between those two threshoids. This vesting will be not before 1 April 2017 and not after 1 April 2019,

' For the award 30 January 2015, for senior managers and Directors 50% or 100% respectively were subject to the share price !
+ ahaining a leve! of £6 for SO days by 1 April 2020. '
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 December 2017

22 Employee remuneration continued
Current Grants Frantier Smart Technologies Group Unappraved Share Scheme 2012 Rules:

Exerise price

Date of grant restated
25 January 2013 __1(_)9_

15 May 2013 . 10p

27 June 2014 _ _10p

28 January 2015 10p

Enenﬁsad
during year Options
Qutstanding at (weighted Qutstanding at exercisable
1 January average Forfeited 31D b 31D b

2017 share price) during year 2017 a:m7

Amount 322,041 {17,707) (120,495) 174,829 105,434

Weighted average price 10p - 10p 10p 10p 10p

Frontier Smart Technologies Group Employee Long Temm Incentive Scheme Joint Shared Ownership Scheme {(JSOP')

The JSOP was approved by the Board in Novemnber 2012. Under the JSOP agreement, the JSOP Shares are held by participants
jointly with the trustee of the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT") pursuant to the terms of joint ownership agreements between the EBT
and each respective participant.

Awards granted under the JSOP will vest on the third anniversary of their grant and value can be realised in respect of such awards
from that dale until the tenth anniversary of the date of grant.

The exercise price payable by paricipants under the JSOP is 10 pence being equal to the nominal value of the ordinary shares.
Al dividend and voting rights in the shares held by the JSOP have been waived, save that, in accordance with the tems of the JSOP,
immediately prior to certain disposals of JSOP shares these rights wiii be reinstated.

The JSOP Awards outstanding at 31 December 2017 are exercisable al a price of 10 pence and had a weighted average remaining
contractuat life of 6.5 years (2016: 7.5 years). During the year zero (2016: nil) JSOP awards were made to employees and Direclors.
Good leaver rules apply to this scheme.

The following performance condilions are relevant to the awards of 25 January 2013. For senior managers and Direclors, the
exercise is conditional on the Frontier Smart Technologies Group share price performing above 125% compared to the FTSE
All Share Index over the three-year period commencing on the date of grant.

For senior managers and Directors 50% or-100% respectively were subject to a combination of the performance criteria set
gut below:

= criteria 1 — the performance criteria have been set such that the value of an ordinary shares is required to outperform the FTSE
All Share Index by 25% over the course of the vesting period in order for 50% of the award 1o vest and by over 50% in order for
the balance of the awards to vest. Awards vest pro-rata between those two threshoids; and

« criteria 2 — 50% of the award will be subject to the share price attaining a level of £6 for 90 days by 1 April 2018. The remaining
50% will be subjact to the following. The value of an ordinary share is required to outperform the FTSE All Share !ndex by 25%
over the course of the vesting period in order for 25% of the tolal award to vest and by 50%, in order for the balance of the
awards lo vest. Awards vesl bro-rala between those two thresholds. This vesting wilt be not before 1 April 2017 and not after
1 April 2019,

For the award 30 January 2015, for senior managers and Directors 50% and 100% respectively were subject 10 the share price
attaining a levet of £6.00 for 80 days by 1 April 2020. :
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Current Grants Frontier Smarn Technologies Group JSOP Scheme:

! Date of grant Exercise price | !
25 January 2013 e e _dop
i 15 May 2013 o e 10p
i 1 July 2013 e e _1_(39
E 27 June 2014 L _ —— 109
i 28 January 2015 ' : 10p
\
‘ Exercised
during year Opticns
‘ Qutstanding at {weighted Cutstanding at sxarcisable
1 January average Fofeited 31 December 31 December -
iL . 2017 share price) during year 2017 2017
i Amount 1,219,778 (123,476) {291,449) i 804,853 ) 243,895
Weighted average price op 10p 10p 10p 10p

Frontier Smart Technologies Group Limited 2017 EMI Share Option Scheme:

Options were issued to employees and Directors under the Frontier Smart Technologies Group 2017 EMI Share Option Scheme,
which was approved by the Board in February 2017. The exercise price for all oplions is 78.50 pence. The oplions vest in three equal
portions in years 2, 3 and 4 (2018, 2020 and 2021) subject to a performance {arget, and the award will lapse ten years from grant. |

The EMI opticns outstanding at 31 December 2017 are exercisable at a price of 78.50 pence and have a weighted average remaining
. contractual fife of 9.1 years. During the cument year 2,499,997 options were granied to employees and Directors. Good leaver rules i
i apply to this scheme. i

. ' " For all awards issued on 6 February 2017, the performance target shall be met if the mid-market closing price of a share on the ,
Alternative Investment Market {*AIM') of the London Stock Exchange is £1.60 or higher for at least 30 consecutive trading days ’
! between the date of grant and the date of exercise of the option.

Current Gramé -Frontier Smart Technologies Group Limited 2017 EMI Share Option Scheme:

| Date of grant Exarcise price .
g 6 February 2017 : 78.50p '
i Risk-free interest rate - :
! Second anniversary of date of grant - 0.69% !
i Third anniversary of date of grant - CTTT T e e e ._"m_:-_t')_.;ai !
: Fourth anniversary of date of grant - T 0.86% 5
' Expected volatility ' ’

' Second anniversary of date of grant e _6_0_21‘3-6;
Third anniversary of date of grant B - 59.79% |

. Fourth anniversary of date of grant . I ) 58.40%

Expected dividend yield : 0%

7 ) Exercised

during year ' Options

Outstanding at {weighted Outstanding at exarcisable

1 January Issued during average Forfeited 31 December 31 December

2017 the year share prics) during year 2017 2017

Amount — 2,499,997 - (38,372} 2,461,625 —_

Weighted average price —_ 78.5p —_ 78.5p 78.5p -_
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

22 Employee remuneration continued
Current Grants Frontier Smart Technologies Group Limited 2017 EMI Share Option Scheme conlinued:
The total number of options and JSOP outstanding at 31 December 2017 is 3,877,321.

—

Consisting of 2017 2018

Total JSOP 804,853 1,219,778

Total other options 3,072,468 840,691

Employee share-based expense of £617,000 (201€: £633,000) has been included in the consalidated income statement in

accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments’ which gave rise to a share-based payment reserve. No liabilities were recognised

due to share-based payment transactions. The deferred tax asset amounting to approximately £374.000 (2016: £108,000) has not

been provided on the share-based payment expense due to there being insufficient certainty regarding its recovery.

23 Subsidiary undertakings

Name Principal activity Ptace of incarporation % equity

Frontier Microsystems Limited Cevelopment and exploitation in relation England and Wales 100%
to wireless semiconductor chips and
embedded solutions

Frontier Silicon Limited Development, manufacture and sale of England and Wales 100%
digital radio and smart audio technologies

Frontier Silicon (HK) Limited' Company providing support services from Hong Kong 100%
Hong Kong and People’s Republic of China

Frontier Silicon SRL! Development of digital radio and Romania 100%
smart audio technologies

Frontier Smarnt Technolegies Limited Dormant England and Wales 100%

Sensium Healthcare SRL Dormant Romania 100%

Toumaz Asia Pte Limited Dormant Singapore 100%

1 Owned by Frontier Silicon Limited.

24 Capital management

The Group's capital management objective is to ensure that there is adequate capital within the business 1o preserve the working
capital required for ongoing trading and to provide the Group with the necessary resources o develop products that will generate
future profitable revenue streams. Whilst management actively seeks to secure funding in the form that is most advantageous lo

bath the business and the shareholders, the nature of the Group’s current activities means that this is typically limiled to equity

funding and simple debt instruments.

25 Post balance sheetevents
There have been no material events since 31 December 2017.

26 Approval of the financial statements
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2018.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERALMEETING
Notice is given that the Annual General § That the Directors be authorised to Notes to Annual General Meeting

Meeting of the members of Frontier
Sman Technolegies Group Limited wilt
be held at the offices of Buchanan,
107 Cheapside, London EC2V 6DN
on Tuesday 24 April 2018 at 11.00am
to consider and, if thought fit, to pass
the resolutions set out below:

In regard to resolutions 2 and 3, the
Directors believe that the Board continues
to maintain an appropriate balance of
knowledge skilis. This follows a process
of forma! evaluation which confirms that
each Director makes an effective and
valuable contribution 1o the Board and
demonstrates commiiment to the role.

Ordinary resolutions
1 Toreceive the report and accounts for
the year ended 31 December 2017..

2 Tore-elect Anthony Sethill as a
Director who is retiring by rotaticn
in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company and,
being eligible, offering himself for
reappointment as a Director of
the Company.

3 Tore-elect Martin Hariman as a
Director who is retiring by rotation
in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company and,
being eligible, offering himself for
reappointment as a Director of
the Company.

4 Toreappoint Grant Themton UK LLP
as auditor and to authorise the
Directors to determine its
remuneration.

disapply the pre-emption rights set
out in article 17 of the articles of
association, such power to expire at
the conclusion of the Company’s next
annuat general meeting, and that the
Directors may allot equity securities
following an offer or agreement made
before the expiry of the authority and
provided that the authority is limited to:

51 the allolment of equity securities
pursuant to the exercise of any of
the options either granted crto be
granted under the Company’s
share option scheme; and

52 the alloiment of equity securities,
otherwise than in accordance with
paragraph 5.1 up to an aggregate
amount being 10% of the
Company's issued share capital
on the date of this notice.

By order of the Board

Jonathan Apps

Assistant Company Secretary
Intertrust Group

180 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY 13005
Cayman Islands

7 March 2018

1

‘and office copy or duly certified copy

A member entitied to attend and vote
at the above meeting may appeint one
or more proxies to attend and, on a
poll, vote in his place. A proxy need
nol be a member of the Company.

The instrument appeinting a proxy and
(in the case of an instrument signed
by an agent of the member who is not
a corporation) the authority under
which such instrument is signed or

must be deposited at the office of Link
Asset Services, PXS, 34 Beckenham
Road, Kent BR3 4TU, not less than
48 hours (excluding weekends) before
the lime appointed for the meeting or
any adjoumed meeting. A prepaid
form of proxy for use in respect of the
meeting is enclosed.

P
o
T
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Completion of a fom of proxy will not
prevent a member from atiending and
voling in person.

Members will be entitled to attend
and vote at the meeting if they are
registered on the Company’s register
of members as at close of business
on 20 April 2018. Changes to entries
on the register after this time will

be disregarded in determining the
rights of any person to attend or vote
at the meeting.

in the case of joint holders of the
shares in the Company. the vole of the
senior holder shall be accepted to the
exclusion of the votes of the other
joint holder(s). For this purpose,
seniority will be determined by the
order in which the names appear

in the Company’s register of
shareholders (or the Company’s
registrar's records).
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GLOSSARY

ACP

average cost price

AGM

Annual General Meefing
AlM

Altemnative Investment Market
APl

application programming interface
ASP

average sales price

AVS

Alexa Voice Service

CES

Consumer Electronics Show
CGU

cash-generating unit

DAB

digital audio broadcasting
DsO

digital switchover

EBITDA

eamings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation

EBT
Employee Benafit Trust .

EMI
Enterprise Management Incentive

EQ

equaliser

FRC
Financial Reporting Coundil

GVA
Google Voice Assistant

HMRC

Her Majesty's Revenue and Custems

HR
human resources

IAS
inlemational Accounting Standard

IASB

Intemnationaf Accounting
Standards Board

IFRIC
Internationat Financial Reporting
Interpretations Commitiee

IFRS

intemationat Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the
European Union

IP
intellectual propernty

IPO
initial public offering

ISAs
Intemational Standards on Auditing

JSOP

Frontier Smart Technologies Group
Employee Leng Term Incentive Scheme
Joint Shared Ownership Scheme

LED
light emitting diode

ODM
original design manufacturer

R&D
research and development

RCA
Radio Corporation of America

VP
Vice President
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